SupremeX

MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE THREE- AND TWELVE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED DECEM BER 31,2011

The following management’s discussion and analgtiinancial condition and results of operations
(“MD&A"), dated February 15, 2012, of Supremex Ir{the “Company”) should be read together with
the accompanying audited consolidated financiatesteents and related notes of the Company for the
year ended December 31, 2011. These consolidataddial statements of the Company have been
prepared by management in accordance with Inteomati Financial Reporting Standards. The fiscal
year of the Company ends on December 31. The Corispaporting currency is the Canadian dollar.
Per share amounts are calculated using the weiglatestage number of shares outstanding for the
three- and twelve-month periods ended Decembe2(Bi],.

This MD&A contains forward-looking statements. Rleasee “Forward-Looking Statements” for a
discussion of the risks, uncertainties and asswmnptrelating to these statements. In addition to ou
results reported in accordance with IFRS, the MD&Aay contain other non-IFRS financial measures.
Terms by which non-IFRS financial measures aretified include, but are not limited to, “EBITDA”

or other similar expressions. Non-IFRS financial asuwres are used to provide management and
investors with additional measures of performarndewever, non-IFRS financial measures do not have
standard meanings prescribed by IFRS and therefoey not be directly comparable to similar
measures used by other companies and should neiebed as alternatives to measures of financial
performance prepared in accordance with IFRS. Seefihition of EBITDA and Non-IFRS Measures”
and “Selected Consolidated Financial Informatiort fthe reconciliation of EBITDA to net earnings.

Financial statements and adoption of IFRS

This MD&A should be read in conjunction with thecampanying consolidated financial statements and
related notes. In February 2008, the Canadian Adauy Standards Board confirmed that IFRS would
replace Canadian GAAP for publicly accountable gmiges for fiscal years beginning on and after
January 1, 2011. The accompanying consolidated ndinh statements for the year ended
December 31, 2010 have been restated to reflecdnption of IFRS and were prepared in accordance
with IFRS 1,First-time adoption of International Financial Ratiog Standards Periods prior to the
transition date have not been restated. Our cataelil financial statements subsequent to this trepor
will be prepared in accordance with IFRS.

Note 25 in the accompanying consolidated finanstatements contain a detailed description of our
conversion to IFRS, including reconciliations anesctiptions of the effect of the transition from
Canadian GAAP to IFRS on equity, net earnings anthpmehensive income. It also includes
reconciliations of the consolidated statements iofrfcial position as at January 1, 2010 and
December 31, 2010, as well as the consolidatedmstatts of earnings and the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income for the year ended DeceBthez010.



Conversion to a Corporation

On January 1, 2011 (the “Effective Date”), Supremiegome Fund (the “Fund”) completed its
conversion from an income trust structure to a @aton. On May 7, 2010, the unitholders of the dFun
approved the plan of arrangement (the “Arrangemgnifsuant to which the Fund will convert from an
income trust structure to a public corporation ndr8apremex Inc. The final order of the Superiori€ou
of Québec with respect to the Arrangement was nbthon May 10, 2010.

Under the Arrangement, unitholders of the Fundiveck for each unit of the Fund held, one common
share of Supremex.

The Arrangement has been accounted for as a cdgtialiinterests of the Fund since Supremex
continues to operate the business of the Fundteand tvere no ownership changes. Under the continuit
of interests’ method of accounting, the transfertted assets, liabilities and equity of the Fund to
Supremex is recorded at the net book value aseaEttective Date of the transaction. As a resuit, f
accounting purposes, the transaction is requireletaccounted for as though the Company was a
continuation of the Fund but with its capital reflag the exchange of Fund units for Supremex
common shares. Therefore, certain terms such alsider/unitholder, dividend/distribution and
share/unit may be used interchangeably throughuat MD&A. For the periods reported up to the
Effective Date of the conversion, all payments nigholders were in the form of fund unit distributs,

and after that date all payments to shareholders inghe form of dividends.

Any references to the Fund for periods after Janiga2011 shall mean Supremex Inc. as the successor
of the Fund. Comparative figures presented in thesalidated financial statements and the MD&A of
the Company include all amounts previously repoligdhe Fund. References to “company”, “share”,
“dividends” and “shareholders” means “fund”, “unittistributions” and “unitholders” for transactisn

that occurred before the conversion of the Fural ¢orporation.

Pursuant to the Arrangement, the stated capitatfiercommon shares was reduced to an amount of
$10 million as of the Effective Date.

Overview

Supremex is Canada’s leading manufacturer and nearle a broad range of stock and custom
envelopes and related products. Supremex emplgy®ximately 60Qpeople and is the only national
envelope manufacturer in Canada, with seven maturfag facilities across six provinces. This
national presence allows Supremex to meet the raatwifing needs of large national customers, such as
large Canadian corporations, nationwide resellas government bodies, as well as paper merchants
and solution and process providers.

Overall Performance

EBITDA before restructuring expenses for the fougtlarter of 2011 was $7.8 million compared with
EBITDA before restructuring expenses of $8.4 milli@corded for the fourth quarter of 2010. Revenue
in the fourth quarter of 2011 amounted to $36.7ioml compared with $40.2 million in the fourth
quarter of 2010, representing a decrease of $3lwmor 8.8%. In the fourth quarter, total volumeas
down by 13.6%, due to lower volume in both Canada the US. The Canadian volume was down
12.1%, with a significant reduction of volume fraifme government and form resellers. The fourth
quarter of 2010 saw exceptional demand from forselters due to the restocking of products befoee th
end of the year. The US volume was down by 22.4%lmndue to specific orders done in the fourth
guarter of 2010 that were not repeated and the Vogime related to the Buffalo partnership stadéed
the end of the third quarter of 2010.



In the fourth quarter of 2011, restructuring exgensf $0.4 million were recorded mainly in relation
with the previously announced merger of the two ead facilities into the LaSalle facility. The Net
Dame facility lease expired on October 31, 2011 #wedintegration of the two facilities is now fully
completed.

The Company renewed its credit agreement on Novemhb2011 for a period of 4 years. The total
credit facilities of $95 million consist of a teranedit facility of $50 million, a revolving faciljt of

$20 million and an acquisition/capital expendituiaslity of $25 million. The Company'’s total seealr
credit facilities net of cash amounted to $51.6lianl as at December 31, 2011, which represents a
reduction of $7.6 million in the fourth quarter211 and $17.4 million during the year.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, EBITDA befmuisition costs and restructuring expenses
was $29.5 million or 20.5% of revenues comparett $83.2 million or 21.7% of revenues in 2010.

Key Factors Affecting the Business

The Company's operating results and financial doomli are subject to a number of risks and
uncertainties, and are affected by a number obfaatutside management’s control. See “Risk Fattors
for a discussion of these risks.

Summary of Quarterly Results

Supremex’s revenue is subject to the seasonal tiimgrand mailing patterns of its customers. The
number of units sold by Supremex is generally highging fall and winter mainly due to the higher
number of mailings related to events includingrgterrn to school, fund-raising, and the holiday ad
seasons. The number of units sold by Supremex rierghly lower during spring and summer in
anticipation of a slowdown in mailing activities dfusinesses during the summer. As a result,
Supremex’s revenue and financial performance fgrsamgle quarter may not be indicative of revenue
and financial performance which may be expectedHerfull year. To maintain production efficiengies
Supremex utilizes warehouse capabilities to inugnémvelopes as required to counter these predictab
seasonal variations in sales volume.

The following table presents a summary of operatesylts of the Company on a quarterly basis from
January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2011. The Compaoptad IFRS on January 1, 2011, effective
January 1, 2010 and therefore comparative figune2310 are presented under IFRS.

(In thousands of dollars, except for per share/anitounts)

Dec. 31, Sept. 30, June 30, Mar. 31, Dec.31, Sept.30, June 30, Mar. 31,

2011 2011 2011 2011 2010 2010 2010 2010
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Revenue 36,699 34,024 34,068 39,101 40,246 36,407 35231 41,241

EBITDA @ 7,432 6,486 6,638 7,893 7,839 7,215 6,008 9,920

Earnings before income taxes 3 96( 1,52( 2,037 3,99t 3,61¢ 3,461 137 5,56¢

Net earning 2,950 1,040 1,452 2,873 2,910 2,692 143 4,073

Net earnings per share/t 0.1007 0.0355  0.0496 0.0980 0.0993 0.0919  0.0049  0.1390

Notes

@ sSee “Definition of EBITDA.” EBITDA is not a recognéd measure under IFRS and does not have a
standardized meaning prescribed by IFRS. EBITDA malybe comparable to similar measures
presented by other issuers.



Excluding the seasonal patterns of the businesgnte has decreased over the last eight quarters
mainly due to the decrease in volume sold in Caffi@itaving softness in the envelope market and the
strength of the Canadian dollar. The lower earnibgfere income taxes and net earnings for the three
month period ended June 30, 2010 is explained ey réstructuring expenses and the additional
amortization expense recorded following the anneument of the restructuring of the Toronto
operations.

Selected Consolidated Financial Information
(In thousands of dollars, except for per share/aniiounts)

Three-month periods  Twelve-month periods

ended Decembef1, ended Decembefl,
2011 2010 2011 2010
$ $ $ $
Revenue 36,699 40,246 143,892 153,125
Operating expens 24,069 27,470 96,209 102,936
Selling, general and administrative expe 4,826 4,441 18,145 17,001
Acquisition costd" — (16) — 152
Restructuring expens® 372 512 1,089 2,054
EBITDA @ 7,432 7,839 28,449 30,982
Amortization and writ-down of property
plant and equipment 853 1,432 4,398 6,662
Amortization of intangible asst 1,541 1,541 6,164 6,164
Amortization of deferred compensat — — — 315
Loss on disposal of property, plant ¢
equipment 86 94 400 340
Operating earnings 4,952 4,772 17,487 17,501
Financing charge 992 1,158 5,975 4,721
Earnings before income taxes 3,960 3,614 11,512 12,780
Income taxes expen: 1,010 704 3,197 2,962
Net earnings 2,950 2,910 8,315 9,818
Basic and diluted neearnings per share/u 0.1007 0.0993 0.2838 0.3351
Dividend/distribution declared per share/ 0.0300 0.0300 0.0900 0.1200
Total asse 166,841 176,990 166,841 176,990
Secured credit faciliti¢ 54,177 69,070 54,177 69,070

@ Acquisition costs represent the Pioneer Envelopes(lPioneer”) acquisition related costs.

@ Restructuring expenses are mainly related to tegugturing and improvement initiatives to

reduce the Company’s operating costs.
@) See “Definition of EBITDA.”



Results of Operations

Three-month period ended December 31,2011 compared with threemonth period ended
December 31, 2010

Revenue

Revenue for the three-month period ended Decenthe2® 1 amounted to $36.7 million compared
with $40.2 million for the three-month period endedcember 31, 2010, a decrease of $3.5 million or
8.8%. The decrease in revenue is mainly attribatebthe lower number of units sold in Canada.

Sales revenue in Canada decreased by $3.1 milli@4&o, from $37.0 million to $33.9 million, and
sales revenue in the United States decreased #yt#llion or 12.5%, from $3.2 million to $2.8 mibin.

The decrease in sales revenue in Canada was diwanl2.1% decrease in the number of units sold,
partially offset by a 4.1% increase in the aversgjéng price. The decrease in the number of sutd
was mainly seen in the government and form resafterrkets.

The decrease in sales revenue in the United Statesiue to a 22.4% decrease in the number of units
sold partially offset by a 13.2% increase in therage selling price. The decrease in the numbenité

sold is mainly attributable to specific orders danehe fourth quarter of 2010 that were not repéat
and the high volume related to the Buffalo parthigrstarted at the end of the third quarter of 2010
partially offset by the increase in the averagérgeprice resulting from the change in the product.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses for the three-month period efsmémber 31, 2011 amounted to $24.1 million
compared with $27.5 million for the same period2010, a decrease of $3.4 million or 12.4 %. The
impact of the reduced volume mainly explains therel@se in operating expenses.

Gross profit (revenue less operating expenses @ixglamortization and write-down of property, plant

and equipment) was $12.6 million for the three-rhgoeriod ended December 31, 2011 compared with
$12.8 million for the comparable period in 201@jexrease of $0.2 million or 1.1%. As a percentdge o
sales, gross profit increased by 2.7% in 2011 dohre34.4% compared with 31.7% in 2010.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses tata$i4.8 million for the three-month period ended
December 31, 2011 compared with $4.4 million fa $ame period in 2010, an increase of $0.4 million
or 8.7% mainly due to increased compensation.

Acquisition costs and restructuring expenses

Restructuring expenses of $0.4 million for the ¢hneonth period ended December 31, 2011 compared
with $0.5 million for the same period in 2010 arainty related to the restructuring and improvement
initiatives to reduce the Company’s operating costs

EBITDA

As a result of the changes described above, EBIWRA $7.4 million for the three-month period ended
December 31, 2011 compared with $7.8 million fa&r $ame period in 2010, a decrease of $0.4 million
or 5.2%.



Amortization

Aggregate amortization expense for the three-mgettiod ended December 31, 2011 amounted to
$2.4 million compared with $2.9 million for the cparable period in 2010 representing a decrease of
$0.5 million or 19.5%. The decrease is mainly eslato the review of the useful lives of some
manufacturing equipment which have been extendatll&ast five years considering their condition.

Financing charges

Financing charges for the three-month period eridedember 31, 2011 amounted to $1.0 million
compared with $1.2 million for the same period 01@Q, representing a decrease of $0.2 million or
14.3%, resulting from the impact of the reducectl®f debt and lower interest rates.

Earnings before income taxes

Due to the changes in revenue and expenses debdrédyein, the earnings before income taxes
totalled $4.0 million for the three-month periodded December 31, 2011 compared with $3.6
million for the same period in 2010, an increas8@# million or 9.6%.

Provision for income taxes

During the three-month period ended December 3112€he Company recorded a provision for
income taxes of $1.0 million compared with $0.7 limil for the three-month period ended

December 31, 2010. For the three-month period erdlecEmber 31, 2010, the income taxes at
statutory rate were reduced by the impact of therést paid by the Company to the Fund.

Net earnings

As a result of the changes described above, neingaramounted to $3.0 million for the three-month
period ended December 31, 2011 compared with $Rli@mfor the same period in 2010, an increase
of $0.1 million or 1.4%.

Other comprehensive loss

The lower than expected return on plan assetsso€timpany’s defined benefit pension plans as well
as the decrease of the discount rate for accruagfibebligation negatively impacted the net adalar
losses by $7.4 million. These variations signifitammpacted the Company’s comprehensive loss
and the deficit.

Twelve-month period ended December 31, 2011 compared with twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2010

Revenue

Revenue for the twelve-month period ended DecerBlier2011 totalled $143.9 million compared
with $153.1 million for the twelve-month period entiDecember 31, 2010, a decrease of $9.2 million
or 6.0%. The decrease in revenue is mainly at@iiletto a lower number of units sold in Canada
partially offset by the increased volume sold iae United States.

Sales revenue in Canada decreased by $10.2 noltigi2%, from $142.5 million to $132.3 million,
and sales revenue in the United States increase$illfly million or 9.4%, from $10.6 million to
$11.6 million.



The decrease in sales revenue in Canada was djvan 8.1% decrease in the number of units sold
offset by a 1.0% increase in the average sellingepiThe decrease in the number of units sold was
seen in most markets.

The increase in sales revenue in the United Stededue to a 19.2% increase in the number of units
sold partially offset by an 8.5% decrease in therage selling price. The increase in the number of
units sold is mainly attributable to the US parshép in Buffalo signed late in the third quarter of
2010 and the decrease in the average selling frsedting from the change in the product mix.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses for the twelve-month period @fiEcember 31, 2011 amounted to $96.2 million
compared with $102.9 million for the same perio®010, a decrease of $6.7 million or 6.5%. The
impact of the strengthening of the Canadian dalla,lower volume and the reduction in labour costs
mainly explain the decrease in operating expenses.

Gross profit (revenue less operating expenses dixguamortization of property, plant and
equipment) was $47.7 million for the twelve-mon#ripd ended December 31, 2011 compared with
$50.2 million for the comparable period in 201@lezrease of $2.5 million or 5.0%. As a percentage
of sales, gross profit increased by 0.3% in 20re&zh 33.1% compared with 32.8% in 2010.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses eutefil8.1 million for the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2011 compared with $17.0 million fbe tsame period in 2010, an increase of
$1.1 million or 6.7% mainly due to increased congaion.

Acquisition costs and restructuring expenses

Acquisition costs of $0.2 million represent the ri&ier acquisition related costs incurred in
September 2010. Restructuring expenses of $1.bomilfor the twelve-month period ended

December 31, 2011 compared with $2.1 million fa&r same period in 2010 are mainly related to the
restructuring and improvement initiatives to redtiree Company’s operating costs.

EBITDA

As a result of the changes described above, EBIT24 $28.4 million for the twelve-month period
ended December 31, 2011 compared with $31.0 mifiwrthe same period in 2010, a decrease of
$2.6 million or 8.2%.

Amortization

Aggregate amortization expense for the twelve-mettiod ended December 30, 2011 amounted to
$10.6 million compared with $13.1 million for theroparable period in 2010, representing a decrease
of $2.5 million or 19.6%. The decrease is attribigao a write-down of $1.5 million on the Markham
building and $0.7 million on various manufacturieguipment recorded in the twelve-month period
ended December 31, 2010, the amortization of dederompensation for which no equivalent charge
has been booked in 2011 and the review of the Ubefis of some manufacturing equipment which
have been extended to at least five years consgléreir condition.



Financing charges

Financing charges for the twelve-month period endedember 31, 2011 amounted to $6.0 million
compared with $4.7 million for the same period 01Q, representing an increase of $1.3 million or
26.6%, resulting from the loss on valuation of dative financial instruments offset by the impatt o
the reduced level of debt and the lower interest ra

Earnings before income taxes

Due to the changes in revenue and expenses debbidbein, the earnings before income taxes stood
at $11.5 million for the twelve-month period end®@ecember 31, 2011 compared with $12.8 million
for the same period in 2010, a decrease of $1/&mibr 9.9%.

Provision for income taxes

During the twelve-month period ended December 8112 the Company recorded a provision for
income taxes of $3.2 million compared with $3.0lionil for the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2010. For the twelve-month period éndecember 31, 2010, the income taxes at
statutory rate were reduced by the impact of therést paid by the Company to the Fund.

Net earnings

As a result of the changes described above, natngartotalled $8.3 million for the twelve-month
period ended December 31, 2011 compared with $8li8mfor the same period in 2010, a decrease
of $1.5 million or 15.3%.

Other comprehensive loss

The lower than expected return on plan assetseo€timpany’s defined benefit pension plans as well
as the decrease of the discount rate for accruasefibebligation negatively impacted the net adalar
losses by $11.8 million. These variations signifitbtaimpacted the Company’s comprehensive loss
and the deficit.

Segmented Information

The Company currently operates in one businessemgtne manufacture and sale of envelopes. The
Company’s non-current assets amounted to $130l@mih Canada and $1.0 million in the United
States as at December 31, 2011.

In Canada, the Company’'s revenue amounted to $8ilien and $132.3 million for the three- and
twelve-month periods ended December 31, 2011 cardpaith $37.0 million and $142.5 million for
the same periods in 2010, representing a decrda$&.bmillion or 8.4% and of $10.2 million or
7.2% respectively. In the United States, the Coryiganevenue amounted to $2.8 million and
$11.6 million for the three- and twelve-month pdsoended December 31, 2011 compared with
$3.2 million and $10.6 million for the same peria2010, representing a decrease of $0.4 million o
12.5% and an increase of $1.0 million or 9.4% retpely.



Liquidity and Capital Resources
Operating activities

Cash of $19.0 million was generated from operagictivities during the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2011 compared with $32.9 million dyuthre same period of 2010. The decrease in net
cash flows from operating activities is primarilyedto a decrease in net earnings, net change in non
cash working capital balances, deferred incomerggovery and the change in accrued pension
benefit liability. The lower working capital levak at December 31, 2011, excluding cash, assets hel
for sale and current portion of the secured créatilities, resulted mainly from the increase in
income tax payable.

Investing activities

Cash generated from investing activities of $2.Woni during the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2011 is mainly related to the satb@Markham facility partially offset by acquisitio
of property, plant and equipment. In the prior-ypariod, cash of $4.5 million was used in investing
activities related to business acquisition andattgpuisition of property, plant and equipment.
Financing activities

In the twelve-month period ended December 31, 20a%h of $18.7 million was used in financing
activities for the repayment of the term creditilfaes and the payment of dividends. Similarly, in
prior-year period, $28.3 million was used in fingngcactivities for repayments on the revolving and
term credit facilities and the payment of distribos on Fund units.

Liguidity and capital resources summary

Our ability to generate cash flows from operatioombined with our ability to obtain debt financing
are expected to provide sufficient liquidity to rhaaticipated needs for existing and future praject

Contractual Obligations
The following chart outlines the Company’s contuattobligations as at December 31, 2011.
(in thousands of dollars)

Payments due by fiscal year

Total 2012 2013 2014 and

thereafter

Secured credit faciliti¢ 55,000 5,00( 5,00( 45,00(
Operating leas: 7,61% 1,68 1,39( 4,54:
Total 62,61¢ 6,68: 6,39( 49,54;

Financing

On November 4, 2011, the Company renewed and arddtsderedit agreement. The renewed credit
facilities consist of a $20 million revolving faityl, a $50 million term credit facility and a
$25 million acquisition/capital expenditures fagiliAs at December 31, 2011, Supremex had drawn
$5.0 million on the revolving credit facility and®.0 million on the term credit facility.



The revolving credit facility may be used to refica existing credit facilities, finance working
capital requirements and for other general corpopatrposes. The acquisition/capital expenditures
facility may be used to finance permitted acquisisi and permitted capital expenditures. The
revolving and term credit facilities mature on Noeer 4, 2015. The acquisition/capital expenditures
credit facility matures on November 4, 2013 witle thption to extend up to November 4, 2015. The
term credit facility is repayable in quarterly mmipal instalments of $1,250,000. In addition, 5086 o
the annual excess cash flow, as defined in thatagreement, will be applied against the termi¢red
facility if the debt to EBITDA ratio rises above5p, or 25% if the debt to EBITDA ratio falls
between 2.50 and 2.00. No cash flow sweep arenasjifithe debt to EBITDA ratio falls below 2.00
which was the case in 2011.

The facilities bear interest at a floating ratedahen the Canadian prime rate or bankers’ acceptanc
rate, plus an applicable margin on those ratesatABecember 31, 2011, the interest rate on the
revolving and term credit facilities was 3.53 %.eTBompany was in compliance with the covenants
of its credit facilities as at December 31, 2011.

As at January 14, 2011, Supremex Inc. enteredaintimterest rate swap agreement for an amount of
$30 million at a fixed rate of 2.84% until Januady, 2016, excluding all applicable margins.

The credit facilities are collateralized by a hypat and security interests covering all present and
future assets of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Capitalization
As at February 15, 2012, the Company had 29,29%@6¥non shares outstanding.

Pursuant to the normal course issuer bid, whictabesn December 5, 2011, the Company could
purchase for cancellation up to 1,500,000 shard¢$ December 4, 2012. During the year ended
December 31, 2011, the Company did not purchaseisits/ for cancellation.

Financial Instruments
Interest rate and foreign exchange risk

The Company's credit facilities bear interest aloating rate which give rise to the risk that its
earnings and cash flows may be adversely impactediuztuations in interest rates. As at
January 14, 2011, Supremex Inc. entered into earest rate swap agreement for an amount of
$30 million at a fixed rate of 2.84% until Januddy 2016, excluding the applicable margin.

The Company operates in Canada and the UnitedsStatech gives rise to a risk that its earnings

and cash flows may be adversely impacted by fldions in the exchange rate between the US and
Canadian dollar. A portion of Supremex’s revenueamed in US dollars while a large portion of its

expenses, including most of its paper and other maaterials costs as well as certain capital

expenditures, are incurred in US dollars. Supremleo derives a portion of its revenue from

Canadian dollar sales to certain customers for whimrselling price is sensitive to US competition.

Net exposure to the US dollar decreased in 2011tduacreased US sales and lower US dollar
purchases (see “Risk Factors”). Cash, account$vedite and accounts payable and accrued liabilities
include balances denominated in US dollars at tigeoé the year.

Fair value

The fair value of the Company’s financial instrurtseis indicated in note 23 to the Company’s
audited consolidated financial statements for #er ynded December 31, 2011.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
The Company has no other off-balance sheet arragmnsm

Financial Position Highlights

(In thousands of dollars except for ratio)
Decembe 31, Decembe 31,

2011 201C

$ $

Working capite 5,825 1,18(C
Total asse 166,84: 176,99(
Total secured credit facilitie 54,17 69,07(
Equity 64,667 70,82¢

Supremex pays quarterly dividends to shareholdietheadiscretion of the Board of Directors. No
dividend was declared in the third quarter of 28%1he Board of Directors decided in June 2011 that
all decisions pertaining to the dividend policy Wbe made at its quarterly Board meeting which
usually takes place 30 to 45 days after the erehoh quarter. A dividend of $878,933 or $0.03 per
share was declared in the fourth quarter of 2011.

Disclosure Controls and Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

In accordance with National Instrument 52-10@eftification of Disclosure in Issuers' Annual and
Interim Filings the Company has filed certifications signed by Bresident and Chief Executive
Officer and the Vice-President and Chief Finan€¥ficer that, among other things, report on the
design and effectiveness of disclosure controls @odedures, and the design and effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting.

Management has designed disclosure controls arzkguoes to provide reasonable assurance that
material information relating to the Company is maghown to the President and Chief Executive
Officer and the Vice-President and Chief Finan€##icer, particularly during the period in which
annual filings are being prepared. The PresidedtGmief Executive Officer and the Vice-President
and Chief Financial Officer evaluated the effeatiees of the Company's disclosure controls and
procedures and concluded, based on their evalyatiah such disclosure controls and procedures
were effective as of December 31, 2011.

Management has also designed internal control dwemcial reporting to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financigdosing and the preparation of financial statemémts
external purposes in accordance with Canadian GA#R. President and Chief Executive Officer
and the Vice-President and Chief Financial Offiegaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting and cardgd, based on their evaluation, that such internal
control over financial reporting was effective dsDecember 31, 2011. In making their evaluation,
the President and Chief Executive Officer and tiee\President and Chief Financial Officer used the
criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoringg@Mizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO) in Internal Control — Integrated Framework.

Finally, there has been no change in the Compantesnal control over financial reporting during
the year ended December 31, 2011 that materiafgctad, or is likely to materially affect, the
Company'’s internal control over financial reporting
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Significant accounting policies and estimates

The Company prepares its financial statements ifiocmity with IFRS, which requires management
to make estimates, judgments and assumptions thaagement believes are reasonable based upon
the information available. These estimates, judgmand assumptions affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of continggegsets and liabilities at the date of the findncia
statements and the reported amounts of revenuexqahses during the reporting period. Significant
areas requiring the use of management estimategerab implied fair value of goodwill,
determination of fair value of assets acquired #&alilities assumed in business combinations,
determination of pension and other employee beneafieful life of certain assets for amortization
and evaluation of net recoverable amount, incorrestand determination of fair value of financial
instruments. Management bases its estimates aribatexperience and other assumptions, which it
believes are reasonable under the circumstancepagédment also assesses its estimates on an
ongoing basis. The effect on the financial statdmef changes in such estimates in future periods
could be material and would be accounted for inpéréod a change occurs.

The significant accounting policies of the Compang described in note 2 to the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements for the year éfdlecember 31, 2011.

The policies the Company believes are most critwassist in fully understanding and evaluatisg it
reported results include the following:

I ntangible assets and goodwill

Intangible assets and goodwill arise out of busir@snbinations for which the Company has applied
the purchase method of accounting. The purchaskamenvolves the allocation of the cost of an
acquisition to the underlying net assets acquigit on their respective estimated fair value.aks p
of this allocation process, the Company must idgmtnd attribute values and estimated lives to the
intangible assets acquired. These determinatiomshvie significant estimates and assumptions
regarding cash flow projections, economic risk amighted average cost of capital.

These estimates and assumptions determine the a&ratlocated to other identifiable intangible
assets and goodwill as well as the amortizatiomogdior identifiable intangible assets with finite
lives. If future events or results differ adversilym these estimates and assumptions, the Company
could record increased amortization or impairmésairges in the future.

As at December 31, 2011, the Company performedoawgitl impairment test using the discounted
cash flows method based upon management’s besiateti which reflect the Company’s planned
course of action in light of market conditions. TBempany concluded that there was no impairment
in the carrying amount of its goodwill. The Compamill continue to monitor the resulting impact of
market changes.

Valuation technique
The Company uses the discounted cash flows (“D@k&)hod to determine the value in use of its

cash-generating unit and has not made any chawgésetvaluation methodology used to assess
goodwill impairment since the last annual impairtrtest.
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Significant assumptions

The income approach is predicated upon the valutheffuture cash flows that a business will
generate going forward. The DCF method which wssduas at December 31, 2011 involves
projecting cash flows and converting them into espnt value equivalent through discounting. The
discounting process uses a rate of return thabmnwensurate with the risk associated with the
business or asset and the time value of money. dpysoach requires assumptions about revenue
growth or decline rates, operating margins, tae eaid discount rate.

Growth or decline of revenue

The assumptions used were based on the Compangmah budget. The Company projected
revenue, operating margins and cash flows for agef four years that reflect lower demand and
applied a perpetual long-term growth rate for tleeiqul thereafter. In arriving at its forecasts, the
Company considered past experience, economic tesndell as industry and market trends.

Discount rate

The Company assumed a pre-tax discount rate talatdcthe present value of its projected cash
flows. The discount rate represented a weightedageecost of capital (“WACC”) for comparable
companies operating in a similar industry. The WASGn estimate of the overall required rate of
return on an investment for both debt and equityens and serves as the basis for developing an
appropriate discount rate. Determination of the V@A@quires separate analysis of the cost of equity
and debt, and considers a risk premium based @ssessment of risks related to the projected cash
flows.

The key assumptions used in performing the impaitrtesst were as follows:

Assumptions
Pre-taxdiscount rat 15.8%
Tax ratt 25.7%
Perpetual growth re 0.0%

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

Management believes that an increase of 2% of thdgx discount rate or a decrease of 3% of the
perpetual growth rate, in isolation, would decreh®erecoverable amount equivalent to the carrying
value.

I ncome taxes

The Company computes an income tax provision irh edcthe jurisdictions in which it operates.
However, the actual amount of the income tax expdesomes final only upon filing and acceptance
of the tax return by the relevant authorities, whtake place subsequent to the issuance of the
financial statements. Additionally, estimation n€@me taxes includes evaluating the recoverability
of deferred tax assets based on an assessmeastalfitity to use the underlying future tax dedutsio
against future taxable income before they expife dssessment is based upon existing tax laws and
estimates of future taxable income. To the extstitmates differ from the final tax return, earnings
would be affected in a subsequent period.
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The Company is subject to taxation in numeroussglictions. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determioatiis uncertain during the normal course of
business. The Company maintains provisions for migicetax positions that it believes appropriately
reflect its risk with respect to tax matters undetive discussion, audit, dispute or appeal with ta
authorities, or which are otherwise considerednimlve uncertainty. These provisions are made
using the best estimate of the amount expectectpaid based on a qualitative assessment of all
relevant factors. The Company reviews the adeqoadiyese provisions at the end of the reporting
period. However, it is possible that at some fudlmte an additional liability could result from &sd

by taxing authorities. Where the final outcome loégse tax-related matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such diffeesywill affect the tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

The Company’s 2011 effective tax rate was 27.8%anhings before income tax. A 1% increase in
the effective tax rate would have increased thel 20dome tax expense by approximately $115,000.

Employee future benefits

The Company sponsors defined benefit plans prayigeEnsion and other post-employment benefits
to covered employees. The determination of expandeobligations associated with employee future
benefits requires the use of assumptions such eexpected return on assets available to fund
pension obligations, the discount rate to measbtigations, the expected mortality, the expected
retirement age, the expected rate of future congiimmsincrease and the expected healthcare cost
trend rate. Because the determination of the codtabligations associated with employee future
benefits requires the use of various assumptidresetis measurement uncertainty inherent in the
actuarial valuation. Actual results will differ froestimated results which are based on assumptions.

Significant assumptions:

Discount rate for accrued benefit obligation 4.50%
Discount rate for net pension cost 5.50%
Expected return on plan assets 6.25%
Rate of compensation increase 3.50%

Discount rate

As at December 31, 2011, we used Ntagcan’s CIA Method Accounting Discount Rate Cumnéch
follows the methodology suggested in the CIA EdioratNote onAccounting Discount Rate
Assumption for Pension and Post-employment BeRkfits For the Company, a 0.25% increase or
decrease in the discount rate would have decreais@itreased the defined benefit obligation by
approximately $3.8 million as at December 31, 2011.

Expected rate or return

The expected rate of return on assets is basethemxpected rate of return on each asset class
category using a stochastic projecting tool thaiegates multiple expected-return scenarios ovey lon
periods of time for different asset classes. Exgubétes payable by the plan are deducted from this
expected rate of return. For the Company, a 0.2&%¥ease or decrease in the expected rate of return
would have decreased or increased pension expeps@pproximately $0.2 million as at
December 31, 2011.

Rate of compensation

Future salary increases are based on expectee faflation rates.
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Medical cost trend

The medical cost trend is based on our actuaridicakclaims experience and future projections of
medical costs. The average medical cost trendusdd was 6.7% for 2011, which is expected to
decline to 2.5% in 2024. A one-percentage-poirgnge in assumed health care cost trend rates
would have no material impact.

I mpairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets of the Company, including propgrtant and equipment, are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying value of the assets may not be
fully recoverable. Impairment is assessed whendibeounted expected future cash flows derived
from an asset are less than its carrying amourgaimment losses are recognized for the amount by
which the carrying value of an asset exceeds itsvidue. The Company periodically reviews the
estimated useful lives of all long-lived assets euises them if necessary.

New Accounting Policies

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
International Financial Reporting Standards

In February 2008, the Accounting Standards Boa#d $B") confirmed that IFRS will be mandatory
in Canada for profit-oriented publicly accountabletities for fiscal periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2011. Our first annual IFRS consoliddieaincial statements are prepared for the year
ended December 31, 2011 and include the companagéivied of 2010. Starting with the 2011 first
quarter report, we have provided unaudited conatditi quarterly financial information in accordance
with IFRS, including comparative figures for 20Rlease refer to Note 25 of our 2011 consolidated
financial statements for a summary of the diffeemnbetween our consolidated financial statements
previously prepared under Canadian GAAP and thodemlFRS.

IFRS9, Financial Instruments

In October 2010, the International Accounting Stadd Board (“IASB”) issued IFRS %inancial
Instruments(“IFRS 9”). IFRS 9, which replaces IAS 3&jnancial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement establishes principles for the financial repatiof financial assets and financial
liabilities that will present relevant and usefafdarmation to users of financial statements foiirthe
assessment of the amounts, timing and uncertafraty entity’s future cash flows.

IFRS10, Consolidated Financial Statements

In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 10pnsolidated Financial Statement8FRS 107). IFRS 10,
which replaces SIC-1Z;onsolidation — Special Purpose Entitiasd part of IAS 27Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statemenpsovides additional guidance regarding the conoégontrol as
the determining factor in whether an entity shobtl included within the consolidated financial
statements of the parent company.

IFRS12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 1Bjsclosure of Interests in Other EntitigSIFRS 127).
IFRS 12 is a new and comprehensive standard otogise requirements for all forms of interests in

other entities, including joint arrangements, agges, special purpose vehicles and other off loalan
sheet vehicles.
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IFRS13, Fair Value Measurement

In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS Eair Value Measuremer{tiIFRS 13"). IFRS 13 will improve
consistency and reduce complexity by providingecise definition of fair value and a single source
of fair value measurement and disclosure requirésrfen use across IFRS.

IAS 1, Financial Statement Presentation

In June 2011, the IASB issued amendments to IAErancial Statement PresentatigfiAS 1”).
This amendment to IAS 1 will improve the preseptatof the components of other comprehensive
income.

IAS 19, Employee Benefits

In June 2011, the IASB issued amendments to IAS Elfiployee Benefit{“IAS 19”). This
amendment to IAS 19 will improve the recognitiordatisclosure requirements for defined benefits
plans.

These new standards are effective for the Compaimggsim and annual consolidated financial
statements commencing January 1, 2013. However]AB8 has recently issued a proposal to
postpone the mandatory application of IFRSF&hancial Instrumentsfo January 1, 2015. The
Company is assessing the impact of these new stisda its consolidated financial statements.

Risk Factors

The results of operations, business prospects iaaddal condition of Supremex are subject to a
number of risks and uncertainties, and are affebied number of factors outside the control of
Supremex’s management.

Decline in Envelope Consumption

Supremex’s envelope manufacturing business is yigapendent upon the demand for envelopes
sent through the mail. Supremex may compete witkyprt substitutes, which can impact demand for

its products. Usage of the Internet and other \laiit media continues to grow. Consumers use these
media to purchase goods and services, and for pth@oses such as paying utility and credit card

bills. Advertisers use the Internet and electramiedia for targeted campaigns directed at specific
electronic user groups. Large and small businegseselectronic media to conduct business, send
invoices and collect bills. The demand for envefopead other printed materials for transactional

purposes is expected to decline in the future.

The North American envelope manufacturing and mgiindustries are expected to decline in the
foreseeable future, due to a general progressieénddan the use of traditional paper-based praogluct
The business depends on transactional mail andtdirail activities. Transactional mail volumes are
thought to have declined in the last few years idupart to the increasing use of non-traditional
means of communication and information transfechsas facsimile machines, electronic mail and
the Internet. While management believes that itpeifscant decline experienced in the direct mail
volume in 2009 and 2008 was more related to the@oa conditions, there is no assurance that the
direct mail industry will regain its level prior the latest recession and that it will offset aeglohe

in transactional mail. As a result, there can beassurance that Supremex will be able to grow or
even maintain historical sales levels.
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Postal Services

Because the majority of envelopes consumed in Gaaad the United States are mailed, any strike
or other work stoppage by unionized postal workeosild result in a temporary suspension of the

mail activities of most of Supremex’s customers amillld have a material adverse effect on

Supremex. In the summer of 2011, there was a wmppage at Canada Post that lasted about 3
weeks. During that period, envelope shipmentsusiamers were slightly affected and some direct
mail orders were cancelled. Adoption of e-billiatpo increased during that period. Many large
corporations used the work stoppage at Canadat®gsiomote the advantages of e-billing. It is

impossible to quantify, at this time, the impacttioé work stoppage due to its long-term potential

effect.

In addition, postal rates are a significant fa@ffecting envelope usage and any increases inlposta
rates, relative to changes in the cost of altevaadelivery means or advertising media, could tasul
reductions in the volume of mail sent. No assurata® be provided that future increases in postal
rates will not have a negative effect on the l@fehail sent or the volume of envelopes purchased.

Finally, there has been growing talk of “do-not-tFh&gislation in the US with respect to the direct
marketing industry. “Do-not-mail” legislation isstituted at the state level. In 2008, such legat
was introduced but not passed in some states.bEirg said, if such legislation were to be pasied,
would have a negative impact on the Company’s salksne.

Relation with customers

Supremex typically does not enter into long-termitten agreements with customers. As a result,
there is a risk that customers may, without noticepenalty, terminate their relationship with
Supremex at any time. In addition, even if cust@ndecide to continue their relationship with
Supremex, there can be no guarantee that theywitlhase the same amount as in the past, or that
purchases will be on similar terms. Supremex’'sarusr base is solidly diversified with no single
account representing more than 10% of sales, tbdsicimg dependence on any given single
customer.

Environment

The Company operates in an industry which usese lapgantities of paper in its day-to-day

operations. With society’s mounting concern over pinotection of the environment and sustainable
development, Supremex’s products and services aderupressure to be more environmentally
friendly. For instance, the growing concern oveg #mvironment could change the consumption
habits of consumers and new regulations could fdiee Company to use more expensive
environmentally friendly materials in its productiprocess. To mitigate this risk, the Company tries
to be at the forefront of its industry in termscoinmitment to the environment and, in collaboration
with its suppliers, seeks on an ongoing basis duge its impact on the environment. Supremex is
also a leader in the Canadian envelope marketemthrketing of environmental friendly products,

such as 100% recycled paper.
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Economic Cycles

A significant risk that Supremex faces and overalitit has no control is related to economic cycles.
In a soft economy, the market most affected at &upk is its direct mail market. There is a direct
correlation between growth/decline in the gross estio product and direct mail volume. Because of
the economic conditions faced recently, we haveggpced a significant direct mail volume decline.
For Supremex, such impact is partially mitigateddaect mail represents approximately 20% of
Supremex’s total annual volume. For transactionail,nwhich represents about 50% of Supremex’s
annual volume, economic cycles had a lesser imgpact on direct mail since businesses must still
mail out bills to their customers, and the onlinking penetration is fairly low in this segmentof~
many years, transactional volume has been declimritfo to 4% a year.

Competition

Despite Supremex’s leading market position in Canagw entrants into the Canadian envelope
market may have an impact on sales and marginssffargthening of the Canadian dollar against
the US dollar created an incentive for US-basedpsditors to increase market penetration in Canada
in the last five years. The large US envelope magtufers are using their excess capacity to
penetrate the Canadian envelope market. As lonigeadS market stays relatively soft, there will be
pricing pressure in the Canadian market. This pmemon has been amplified since April 2008,
coinciding with the termination of the non-solititen agreement with Cenveo. In the fall of 200&, th
Canadian dollar weakened by almost 25% easing tesspre on the Canadian envelope market.
Since then, the dollar has recovered most of #sds and has been trading close to parity witiuthe
dollar, creating pressure on pricing in Canada. él@w, the costs of freight, coupled with the
efficiency of delivery are barriers to servicingyasignificant customer volume from a distance.

In the current market, the Canadian envelope mahufxs are more aggressive on pricing in order to
generate new sales to replace their lost saleenGive Company’s large market share in Canada,
most of the gains of our smaller competitors in &knare made in Supremex’s accounts.

Nonetheless, to mitigate this risk, the Companytiooes to focus on continuous improvement

programs, cost reduction initiatives and developnoévalue-added services and products around its
core businesses, and still believes in the valukaefng local service and representation in all the
major Canadian markets.

Exchange Rate

A portion of Supremex’s revenue is earned in USadelwhile a large portion of itss expenses,

including most of its paper and other raw matergalsts as well as certain capital expenditures are
incurred in US dollars. Supremex also derives agigroiof its revenue from Canadian dollar sales to

certain customers for whom selling price is sewsito US competition.

Net exposure to the US dollar has decreased in 80#1to the increased US sales and lower US

dollar purchases. Revenue generated in the UntedsSrepresented 8.1% of consolidated revenue in
fiscal 2011, up from 6.9% in fiscal 2010.

18



Availability of Capital

In 2011, the Company completed the refinancingsofiiedit facilities totalling $95 million consisg

of a $20 million revolving facility, a $50 millionterm credit facilty and a $25 million
acquisition/capital expenditures facility. The rkwog and term credit facilities mature on
November 4, 2015. The acquisition/capital expemegifacility matures on November 4, 2013 with
the option to extend up to November 4, 2015. Algtosthe Company carried out this refinancing
successfully, there is no guarantee that additibmals will be available in the future, and if thene,
that they will be provided in a timeframe and undemditions acceptable to the Company.

The acquisitions contemplated by the Company wdluire additional financing. The global financial
market crisis and the global economic slowdown regtend further and constrain the Company’s
ability to meet its future financing requiremernitsgcrease its weighted average cost of capital and
cause other cost increases from counterpartiesfatsnl with liquidity problems and higher cost of
capital. Risk factors such as disruptions in cépitarkets could reduce the amount of capital
available or increase the cost of capital and tharebe no assurance that additional financing avoul
be available to the Company or, if available, thatan be obtained on a timely basis and on
acceptable terms. Failure to obtain additionalrfaiag, when and if required, could have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s future growth bytihg acquisitions. This risk is mitigated by the
fact that the Company has a solid financial pasitemd generates significant cash flow from
operations.

Raw Material Price Increases

The primary raw materials the Company uses arerpapedow material, glue and ink. Fluctuations
in raw material and energy prices affect our opanat

First, the current tightening in the paper marllet to paper mill closures, has resulted in a dsere

in the supply of paper which could in turn leadp@per price increases. While paper costs were
generally a pass through in the past, an increaghe price of paper can negatively affect our
operations if it changes the purchasing habitswfaustomers, especially in the current economic
conditions. Moreover, an increase in the price ajjgr negatively affects Supremex’s profitability if
the increases cannot be passed on to the custbmanitigate this risk, the Company does not rely on
any one supplier and is generally disciplined isgi@g on any raw material increases to its custemer

Fluctuations in the price of oil, a core ingredianthe composition of window material, glue an#d in
have a direct impact on their price. An increaséhin price of oil can have a negative effect on our
operations if it changes the purchasing habitauofcostomers.

Credit

The Company is exposed to credit risk with respedrade receivables. To mitigate this risk, the
Company analyzes and reviews the financial hedltts @urrent customers on an ongoing basis. A
specific credit limit is established for each custov and reviewed periodically by the Company.
Supremex is protected against any concentratiocremfit risk through its clientele and geographic
diversity. No single customer accounts for morenti®% of consolidated accounts receivable.
Supremex’s customer base is solidly diversified emasists mainly of large national customers, such
as large Canadian corporations, nationwide reseberd governmental bodies, as well as paper
merchants and solution and process providers. titiatty, the level of bad debt has been low given
the nature of the customers. As at December 311,26 maximum credit risk exposure for
receivables corresponds to their carrying value.
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Employee future benefits

The Company maintains three registered definedfthigramsion plans substantially covering all of its
employees. Two of these plans are hybrid and irchudefined contribution component. In the past,
the Company has also provided post-retirement astigmployment benefits, including health care,
dental care and life insurance, to a limited nundfemployees.

The most recent actuarial valuations for fundingopses were made as at December 31, 2010 for two
of the pension plans and as at December 31, 200%héo third plan and showed the registered
retirement plans to be in a solvency deficit positdf $12.2 million. Given cash flows generatedrfro
operations, the Company has the financial flextiptld pay this additional annual contribution.

The level of these contributions may vary dependingpension fund performance and the discount
rate, which could affect the financial conditionSiipremex.

Interest Rate

The Company is exposed to market risks relatedterést rate fluctuations. On January 14, 2011, a
$30 million interest swap was contracted. The Camgjsapolicy is to fix a portion of its long-term
debt. Under this swap, the fixed-rate portion repnted 43% at the time it was entered into. The
floating-rate portion of long-term debt increase®007 and 2008 following the two acquisitions and
the normal course issuer bid, but has decreased 2009 mainly due to the reduction in distribusion
since January 2009. Floating-rate debt bears stteates based on bankers’ acceptances rate. This
swap converts the variable interest rate, basdwhnkers’ acceptance rate, to an average fixedestter
rate of 2.84% until January 14, 2016, excludingapplicable margin, which is 225 basis points as at
December 31, 2011.

To mitigate this risk, the Company tries to maintaigood balance of fixed versus floating rate debt

The Canadian central bank has reduced its rates #ie second quarter of fiscal 2008. The Company
benefits partially from the resulting reductionstsfloating rate debt.

Litigation

Supremex, like other manufacturing and sales orgdions, is subject to potential liabilities
connected with its business operations, includingeases associated with product defects,
performance, reliability or delivery delays. Supesnis from time to time threatened with, or named
as a defendant in, legal proceedings, includingslats based on product liability, personal injury,
breach of contract and lost profits or other consatjal damages claims, in the ordinary course of
conducting its business. A significant judgmentiagiaSupremex or the imposition of a significant
fine or penalty, as a result of a finding that Supex failed to comply with laws or regulations, or
being named as a defendant on multiple claims cbaig a material adverse effect on Supremex’s
business, financial condition, results of operatiand cash available for distributions.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This MD&A contains “forward-looking statements” Wwih the meaning of applicable Canadian
securities laws, including (but not limited to) tstaents about the EBITDA projection, future
performance of Supremex and similar statementseraimg anticipated future results, circumstances,
performance or expectations. A statement is ford@oling when it uses what Supremex knows and
expects today to make a statement about the fufimmrsvard-looking statements may include words
such as anticipate, assumption, believe, coulde@xgoal, guidance, intend, may, objective, oltloo
plan, seek, should, strive, target and will. Thesatements relate to future events or future
performance and reflect current assumptions, eatiens and estimates of management regarding
growth, results of operations, performance, busimeespects and opportunities, Canadian economic
environment and liability to attract and retain tonsers. Such forward-looking statements reflect
current assumptions, expectations and estimatemasfagement and are based on information
currently available to Supremex as at the dathiefNID&A.

Forward-looking statements are subject to certisksrand uncertainties, and should not be read as
guarantees of future performance or results andahaesults may differ materially from the
conclusion, forecast or projection stated in suetvéird-looking statements. These risks, unceresnti
and other factors include but are not limited t® thilowing: economic cycles, availability of cagdit
decline in envelope consumption, increase of coitipet exchange rate fluctuation, raw material
increases, credits risks with respect to tradeivabkes, increase in funding of pension plans, gdost
services deficiencies, interest rates fluctuatiod @otential risk of litigation. Such assumptions,
expectations, estimates, risks and uncertaintiesdacussed throughout our MD&A for fiscal 2011
and, in particular, in “Risk Factors”. Consequenthe cannot guarantee that any forward-looking
statements will materialize. Readers should noteplany undue reliance on such forward-looking
statements.

Definition of EBITDA and Non-IFRS Measures

References to “EBITDA” are to earnings before ficiag charges, income taxes, amortization and
write-down of property, plant and equipment, intateyassets and deferred compensation and loss on
disposal of property, plant and equipment.

EBITDA is not an earnings measure recognized ufBBS and does not have a standardized
meaning prescribed by IFRS. Therefore, EBITDA may bhe comparable to similar measures
presented by other entities. Investors are caufichat EBITDA should not be construed as an
alternative to net earnings determined in accorglamith IFRS as an indicator of the Company’s
performance.

Additional Information

Additional information relating to the Company is#able on SEDAR atvww.sedar.com

21



Consolidated Financial Statements

Supremex Inc.
(Formerly Supremex Income Fund)

DecembeB31, 2011 and?010

All amounts expressed in Canadian dollars
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the shareholders of

Supremex Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated dinhrstatements of Supremex Inc, which
comprise the consolidated statements of finanaiaitipn as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and
January 1, 2010, and the consolidated statementamiings, comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flow for the years ended DecembgeP@11 and 2010, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory inforovati

Management's responsibility for the consolidated fiancial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation airdpfesentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International FirenRieporting Standards [“IFRS”], and for such
internal control as management determines is nagess enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from materiastatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hesnsolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance @ithadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we comply with ethiealirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the lmtaied financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaidifevidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The ptoces selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of materigdstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In ntpkitose risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity's prepamatand fair presentation of the consolidated fiienc
statements in order to design audit proceduresatieappropriate in the circumstances, but nothfer
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiserad the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accogngolicies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as weallasating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtainegur audits is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteepresent fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Supremex Inc. as at Decen8fer2011 and 2010, and January 1, 2010, and its

financial performance and its cash flows for thergeended December 31, 2011 and 2010 in
accordance with IFRS.

1
W \d ?ﬂw?/ AL
Chartered accountants

Montreal, Canada
February 15, 2012
! CA auditor permit No. 19483
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Supremex Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at Notes December 31 December 31 January 1,
2011 2010 2010
$ $ $
ASSETS 15
Current assets
Cash 2,606,332 148,874 38,962
Accounts receivable 6 18,740,499 19,595,945 21,092,867
Inventories 7 13,103,192 11,939,720 13,921,726
Prepaid expenses 512,584 425,193 1,429,144
Assets held for sale 8 — 5,568,000 —
Total current assets 34,962,607 37,677,732 36,482,699
Assets held for sale 8 — 348,048 —
Property, plant and equipment 9 29,528,673 30,449,945 40,056,241
Intangible assets 10 26,599,029 32,762,929 38,926,829
Goodwill 11 75,751,125 75,751,125 75,501,125
Total assets 166,841,434 176,989,779 190,966,894
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 12 19,990,280 20,111,812 18,534,512
Provisions 13 656,567 931,297 795,018
Income tax payable 3,490,996 745,683 —
Distribution payable 14 — 292,978 1,464,888
Current portion of secured credit facilities 15 5,000,000 14,415,489 7,500,000
Current portion of derivative financial liability — — 808,652
Total current liabilities 29,137,843 36,497,259 29,103,070
Secured credit facilities 15 49,176,934 54,654,387 84,379,377
Deferred income tax liabilities 16 2,182,392 7,376,780 5,665,294
Accrued pension benefit liability 17 19,251,100 6,984,300 5,487,500
Other post-retirement benefit obligations 17 649,600 648,300 657,000
Derivative financial liability 15 1,776,293 — —
Equity
Share capital 18 10,000,000 — —
Fund units 18 — 282,798,322 282,798,322
Contributed surplus 280,423,746 7,625,424 7,625,424
Deferred compensation — — (315,079)
Deficit (225,680,313)  (219,511,314) (224,364,863)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 19 (76,161) (83,679) (69,151)
Total equity 64,667,272 70,828,753 65,674,653
Total liabilities and equity 166,841,434 176,989,779 190,966,894

Commitment, contingencies and guaranteesd 2]

See accompanying notes
On behalf of the Directors:

By: (Signed L.G. Serge Gadbc
Directol

By: (Signed) Gilles Cy

Directol
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Supremex Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

Years ended December 31 Notes 2013]5 201§
Revenue 143,892,19 153,124,39
Operating expens 7,20 96,209,379 102,935,63
Selling, general and administrative expe 20 18,144,751 17,000,75
Operating earnings before amortization, write-down,

loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment,

acquisition costs and restructuring expenses 29,538,069 33,188,010
Amortization and writ-down of property, plant ar

equipment 8,9 4,397,561 6,661,624
Amortization of intangible asst 10 6,163,900 6,163,901
Amortization of deferred compensat — 315,07¢
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equip! 400,16! 340,16
Acquisition cost 5 —_ 152,07(
Restructuring expens 13 1,089,401 2,054,51!
Operating earnings 17,487,042 17,500,64
Financing charge 15 5,974,75 4,720,98.
Earnings before income taxes 11,512,291 12,779,66
Income tax expen 16 3,197,417 2,961,85I
Net earnings 8,314,874 9,817,81i
Basic and diluted net earnings per share/unit 0.38 0.335!
Weighted average number of shares/units outstanding 29,297,767 29,297,76

See accompanying notes
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Supremex Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INC OME

Years ended December @ Notes 2011 2010
$ $
Net earnings 8,314,87. 9,817,81
Other comprehensive loss
Recognized actuarial loss on defined benefit per
plans, net of income tax recovery of $4,091,882
[2010 - $492,185] 17 (11,818,418)  (1,427,415)
Recognized actuarial loss on other -retirement
benefit, net of income tax recovery of $9,944
[2010 - $7,282] 17 (28,656) (21,118)
Foreign currency translation adjustm 7,518 (14,528)
Other comprehensive Ic (11,839,55¢€ (1,463,061
Total comprehensive (loss) income (3,524,682 8,354,75

See accompanying notes
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Supremex Inc.

Year ended December 31

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Accumulated

other
Share Contributed comprehensive
capital Fund units surplus Deferred loss
[notes 1 and 18] [notes 1 and 18] [note 1] compensation Deficit [note 19] Total equity
$ $ $ $ $ $ $
As at December 32 201( — 282,798,32 7,625,42. — (219,511,311« (83,679 70,828,75
Net earning — — — — 8,314,87. — 8,314,87.
Other comprehensive Ic — — — — (11,847,074 7,51¢ (11,839,55¢€
Total comprehensive Ic — — — — (3,532,200 7,51¢ (3,524,682
Conversion into a corporati 282,798,32 (282,798,32: — — — — —
Reduction of stated capi (272,798,32z —  272,798,32 — — — —
Dividends declare[note 14 — — — — (2,636,799 — (2,636,799
As at December 31, 201 10,000,00 — 280,423,74 — (225,680,31:% (76,161 64,667,27
As at January 1, 201 — 282,798,32 7,625,42. (315,079 (224,364,86: (69,151 65,674,65
Net earning — — — — 9,817,81 — 9,817,8L
Other comprehensive Ic — — — — (1,448,533 (14,528 (1,463,061
Total comprehensive incot — — — — 8,369,28! (14,528 8,354,75
Amortization of deferre:
compensation — — — 315,079 — — 315,079

Distributions declare[note 14 — — — — (3,515,736 — (3,515,73€
As at December 31, 201 — 282,798,32 7,625,42. — (219,511,31¢ (83,679 70,828,75

See accompanying notes
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Supremex Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

Years ended December 31 2011 2010
Notes $ $
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net earning 8,314,87. 9,817,81
Non-cash adjustment to reconcile net earnings taash flows
Amortization and write-down of property, plant aeaguipment 9 4,397,561 6,661,624
Amortization of intangible asst 1C 6,163,901 6,163,901
Amortization of deferred compensation — 315,079
Amortization of deferred financing co 15 881,79t 851,10¢
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 400,165 340,169
Loss on valuation of derivative financial instrurts 15 1,776,29: —
Deferred income tax (recovery) expense 16 (1,092,562) 2,210,953
Working capital adjustments
Variation in accounts receival 745,82: 2,184,64.
Variation in inventories (1,163,472) 2,465,829
Variation in prepaid expens (87,391 1,030,97.
Variation in accounts payable and accrued liabaiti (121,532) 1,248,655
Variation in provision (274,730 136,27¢
Variation in income tax payat 2,745,313 745,68
Variation in derivative liability — (808,652)
Change in accrued pens benefit liability (3,643,50C (422,800
Change in other post-retirement benefit obligation (37,300) (37,100)
Net cash flows from operating activitie 19,005,23 32,904,15
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Business acquisition 5 109,623 (1,739,920)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipm 9 (3,998,29C (3,234,037
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 336,611 507,847
Proceeds from sale of assets held for 8 5,727,171 —
Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities 2,175,114 (4,466,110)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds (repayment of) from revolving credit facil 709,114 (16,033,295)
Repayment of term credit facil (15,625,00C (7,500,000
Dividends paid 14 (2,636,799) —
Distributions paid on Fununits 14 (292,978 (4,687,646
Financing cost incurred (858,852) (127,311)
Net cash flows used in financing activitie (18,704,51¢ (28,348,252
Net change in cas 2,475,83 89,79t
Net foreign exchange difference (18,379) 20,117
Cash beginning of perio 148,87- 38,96:
Cash, ending of period 2,606,332 148,874
Supplemental information ®
Interest pai 3,135,93: 4,564,16
Interest received 5,679 5,895
Income taxes pa 1,523,42 7,57¢
Income taxes receivi 29,37( 34,10¢

@ Amounts paid and received for interest and fooine taxes were reflected as cash flows from

operating activities in the consolidated statemeftsash flows.

See accompanying notes

29



Supremex Inc

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011 and 2010
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

Supremex Inc. (the “Company” or “Supremex”) wasomporated on March 31, 2006 under the
Canadian Business Corporation Adthe common shares (“‘common share”) of the Compaay
listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (“TSX") undee symbol SXP. The registered office is
located at 7213 Cordner Street in LaSalle, Quebhe. Company is the successor to Supremex
Income Fund (the “Fund”) following the completiohtbe conversion of the Fund from an income
trust to a corporation, on January 1, 2011 (théettEive Date”).

On May 7, 2010, the unitholders of the Fund appdowbe plan of arrangement (the
“Arrangement”) pursuant to which the Fund conveffrein an income trust structure to a public
corporation named Supremex Inc. The final ordahefSuperior Court of Québec with respect to
the Arrangement was obtained on May 10, 2010.

Under the Arrangement, unitholders of the Fund iveck for each unit of the Fund held, one
common share of Supremex.

The Arrangement has been accounted for as a cagtifuinterests of the Fund since Supremex
continues to operate the business of the Fund laec tare no ownership changes. Under the
continuity of interests method of accounting, tremsfer of the assets, liabilities and equity & th
Fund to Supremex is recorded at the net book vasuat the Effective Date of transaction. As a
result, for accounting purposes, the transactioneggiired to be accounted for as though the
Company was a continuation of the Fund but wittcépital reflecting the exchange of Fund units
for Supremex common shares. Therefore, certain stesuch as shareholder/unitholder,
dividend/distribution and share/unit may be usedrihangeably throughout these consolidated
financial statements. For the periods reported aiphe Effective Date of the conversion, all
payments to unitholders were in the form of funit distributions, and after that date all payments
to shareholders were in the form of dividends.

Any references to the Fund for periods after JantiaR011, shall mean Supremex Inc. as a
successor of the Fund. Comparative figures predent¢he consolidated financial statements of
the Company include all amounts previously repotigcdthe Fund. References to “Company”,

“share”, “dividends” and “shareholders” means “fUntlnit”, “distributions” and “unitholders”
for transactions that occurred before the conversfdhe Fund into a corporation.

Pursuant to the Arrangement, the stated capitalhi®rcommon shares was reduced to an amount
of $10 million as of the Effective Date.

The business of Supremex follows seasonal patteitis the highest revenue occurring from
August to February due to seasonal advertising raaiing patters of its customers since the
highest number of mailings related to events indgdhe return to school, fund-raising and the
holiday and tax seasons take place during thabgeri
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Supremex Inc

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011 and 2010
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND BASIS OF PREPARATION [Con t'd]

These consolidated financial statements were apdrby the Company’s Board of Directors on
February 15, 2012.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements repredentfitst annual financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries prepared in accordavitte International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS"), as issued by the InternatioAgkounting Standards Board (“IASB”)
applicable for periods beginning on or after Japdar2011, as described in the accounting
policies. The Company adopted IFRS in accordancth WFRS 1, First-time Adoption of
International Reporting Standard$he first date at which IFRS was applied was danti, 2010
(the “transition date”).

The Company's consolidated financial statementsafbmperiods up to and including the year
ended December 31, 2010 were previously preparedcaordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Canada (“Canadian GAAP”).&d&m GAAP differs in some areas from
IFRS. In preparing these consolidated financiatesteénts, management has amended certain
accounting, measurement and consolidation methoglsqusly applied in the Canadian GAAP
consolidated financial statements to comply witlR$: Reconciliations and descriptions of the
effect of transition from Canadian GAAP to IFRS tre Company's consolidated financial
statements are provided in note 25.

These consolidated financial statements were peepan a going concern basis, under the
historical cost convention, except for derivatiimahcial instruments and assets held for sale that
have been measured at fair value.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprisefittancial statements of Supremex Inc. and its
subsidiaries, Buffalo Envelope Inc., Montreal Emmgsl (2008) Inc. and Quebec Envelope Inc., as
at December 31, 2011.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the dateacquisition, being the date on which the
Company obtains control, and continue to be codats#d until the date that such control ceases.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries agpamed for the same reporting period as the parent
company, using consistent accounting policies. idtita-group balances, income and expenses,
unrealized gains and losses and dividends resuhimg intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full.
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Supremex Inc
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011 and 2010
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Cont'd]
Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using ¢haisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the aggregate of the consideratinsférred, measured at the fair value at the date
of the acquisition. Acquisition costs incurred expensed.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being thecess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred over the Company’s net identifiableesscquired and liabilities assumed. If this
consideration is lower than the fair value of tle¢ assets of the subsidiary acquired, the diffexenc
is recognized in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measureda@ist less any accumulated impairment losses.
Segment reporting

The Company operates in one reporting segmentmtnaufacturing and sale of a broad range of
stock and custom envelopes and related products.

Foreign currency translation

Supremex’s consolidated financial statements agsgmted in Canadian dollars, which is also its
functional currency. Supremex and its subsidiagi@sh determine their own functional currency
and items included in each of their financial stegats are measured using that functional
currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initiallgorded by the entities at their respective funetion
currency rates prevailing at the date of the tretnsia

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated inifpreurrencies are retranslated at the functional
currency spot rate of exchange ruling at the répprdate. All differences are taken to the
consolidated statement of earnings.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms stoti¢al cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates as at the afates initial transactions.

Subsidiaries

The assets and liabilities of foreign operatiorss anslated into Canadian dollars at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and thttements of earnings are translated at
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the adioms. The exchange differences arising on
translation are recognized in other comprehensigerne. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relatingthat particular foreign operation is
recognized in the statement of earnings.
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Supremex Inc
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011 and 2010
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Cont'd]
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the cerdithn received or receivable, net of estimated
returns and discounts, and after eliminating irtangany sales.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized wineffollowing criteria are met:
e« The risks and rewards of ownership, including manag involvement, have been
transferred to the buyer;
e The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
* The receipt of economic benefits is probable; and
» Costs incurred or to be incurred can be measutiatbise

In addition to the above general principles, thenpany applies specific revenue recognition for
bill and hold transactions. When customers regadsil and hold, revenue is recognized when the
customer is invoiced for goods that have been mediupackaged and made ready for shipment.
These goods are shipped within a specified peridiine and are segregated from other inventory,
the risk of ownership of the goods is assumed gy dhistomer, and the terms and collection
experience on the related billings are consistetht &l other sales.

Taxation

Tax expense comprises current and deferred taxisTi@cognized in the consolidated statement of
earnings except to the extent it is related to gteatognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax

Current tax expense is based on the results foygaeas adjusted for items that are not taxable or
not deductible. Current tax is calculated usingrta®s and laws that were enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Managémeriodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in whichlamable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
Provisions are established where appropriate obdkes of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized, using the liability heat, on temporary differences at the reporting
date arising between the tax bases of assets abilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Defditax is calculated using tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted atrtheolethe reporting period, and which are
expected to apply when the related deferred incaxasset is realized or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.
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Supremex Inc

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011 and 2010
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Cont'd]

Deferred tax liabilities:

« Are generally recognized for all taxable tempordifierences;

» Are recognized for taxable temporary differencdsimg on investments in subsidiaries,
except where the timing of the reversal of the teragy difference can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will reaterse in the foreseeable future; and

* Are not recognized on temporary differences thaseafrom goodwill which is not
deductible for tax purposes.

Deferred tax assets:

» Are recognized to the extent it is probable thaglde profits will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences (caomefard of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses) can be utilized ; and

« Are reviewed at the end of the reporting period esdliced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profitsiveié available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recaghin respect of temporary differences that arise
on initial recognition of assets and liabilitiesqazed other than in a business combination. The
transaction does not affect accounting profit otabde profit upon completion. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at egmbrting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profil twe available to allow all or part of the defedr

tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferrechtsets are reassessed at each reporting date and
are recognized to the extent that it has becombkapite that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Salestax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognizedineamfiount of sales tax, except:

* Where the sales tax incurred on a purchase ofsagseervices is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case the sales taxesognized as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expéaseas applicable;

» Accounts receivables and trade payables that atedswith the amount of sales tax
included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, galpia to, the taxation authority is included as
part of the accounts payable and accrued liatslitre the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Employee future benefits

The Company maintains three defined benefit pengians, two of which are hybrid as they also
have a defined contribution component, substagt@lering all of its employees. In the past, the
acquired businesses have also provided post-raiteand post-employment benefits plans to a
limited number of employees covering health caental care and life insurance. These benefits
are unfunded.
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Supremex Inc

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011 and 2010
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Cont'd]

For defined benefit pension plans and other pogti@yment benefits, the net periodic pension
expense is actuarially determined on an annuas lilgsindependent actuaries using the projected
unit credit method. The determination of the netiquiic pension expense requires assumptions
such as the expected return on assets availalflentbpension obligations, the discount rate to
measure obligations, the expected mortality, theeeted retirement age, the expected rate of
future compensation increase and the expectedhbasatt cost trend rate. The assets are valued at
fair value. Actual results will differ from estimeat results which are based on assumptions. The
vested portion of past service cost arising froanmendments is recognized immediately in the
consolidated statement of earnings. The unvestdibpads amortized on a straight-line basis over
the average remaining period until the benefitobhervested.

The asset or liability recognized in the consokdastatement of financial position is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the efidhe reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets. The present value of the defined bendigation for service accrued at calculation date is
determined by discounting the estimated future @agfiows using interest rates of high-quality

corporate bonds that are denominated in the currenwhich the benefits will be paid and that

have terms to maturity approximating the termshef telated pension liability. All actuarial gains

and losses that arise in calculating the presdoewef the defined benefit obligation and the fair

value of plan assets are recognized immediatebghiar comprehensive income. For funded plans,
surpluses are recognized only to the extent thasthplus is considered recoverable taking into
account future contributions for unfunded liabiliBecoverability is primarily based on the extent
to which the Company can unilaterally reduce futtoetributions to the plan.

Payments to defined contribution plans are expermsethcurred, i.e., as the related employee
service is rendered.

Share-based compensation plan

The Company operates a cash-settled share-basegensation plan under which it receives
services from employees as consideration. The obghe cash-settled share-based plan is
measured initially at fair value at grant date.sTfair value is expensed over the period until the
vesting date with recognition of a correspondimdpility. The liability is re-measured to fair value

at each reporting date up to and including theleseéint date, with changes in fair value

recognized in employee benefits expense.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are generally payable when leymgent is terminated before the normal
retirement date or whenever an employee acceptmtasly redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Company recognizes termination benefhen it is demonstrably committed to
either terminating the employment of current emebs/ according to a detailed formal plan
without realistic possibility of withdrawal or priming termination benefits as a result of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
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Supremex Inc
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2011 and 2010

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Cont'd]
Basic and diluted net earnings per share
The Company presents basic net earnings per straits tommon shares, calculated by dividing
the net earnings attributable to common shareh®ldéithe Company by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the year
Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost andremizable value. Cost is determined using the
first-in, first-out method. The cost of finished agis and work-in-progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs amated production overheads. Net realizable value is
the estimated selling price in the normal coursebo$iness, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at éastrtization is calculated using the straight-
line method over the following estimated usefuéfiv

Buildings 10 to 40 years
Leasehold improvements Lease term
Machinery and equipment Seven to 15 years
Office equipment Three to five years
Computer equipment Three years

Residual values, method of amortization and udefes are reviewed annually prior to year-end
and adjusted if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Upon acquisition, identifiable intangible assets agcorded at fair value if they result from a
business acquisition, if not, at cost and are edrait cost less accumulated amortization. Intaagibl
assets acquired are comprised of customer relaijmmsand non-compete agreements which are
amortized on a straight-line basis over ten years.
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Supremex Inc
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011 and 2010
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Cont'd]
Impairment of non financial assets

Impairments are recorded when the recoverable amoluassets are less than their carrying
amounts. The recoverable amount is the higher @fsapt’s fair value less cost to sell or its value
in use. Impairment losses, other than those reglatin goodwill, are evaluated for potential
reversals when events or changes in circumstanagsnt such consideration.

The carrying values of all intangible assets ammperty, plant and equipment are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circurnetaimdicate that their carrying amount may

not be recoverable. For the purposes of assessipgiiment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiatdsh flows. The Company bases its impairment
calculation on detailed budgets and forecast catiiculs, which generally cover a period of four

years.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as acBmber 31 or more often if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that it might be impairElde impairment test consists of a comparison
of the recoverable amount of the cash-generatirig tanwhich goodwill is assigned with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss in the cargymmount compared with the fair value is
charged to earnings in the period in which the iinmpant occurs.

Disposal of long-lived assets and discontinued ofions

Long-lived assets are classified as held for $aleei carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than throughimoedi use and such sale is considered highly
probable with the asset available for immediate sal its present condition. The criteria for
classification as held for sale includes a firmisiean by management or the board of directors to
dispose of a business or a group of selected aasdtthe expectation that such disposal will be
completed within a 12 month-period. Assets held dale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amounts or their fair value less costseth and are no longer amortized. Assets held for
sale are classified as discontinued operationfaf dperations and cash flows can be clearly
distinguished, operationally and for financial repm purposes from the rest of the Company and
they:

* Represent a separate major line of business orgglaigal area of operations;

« Are part of a single coordinated plan to dispose &feparate major line of business or
geographical area of operations; or

* Are a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a viear¢sale.
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Supremex Inc

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011 and 2010
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Cont'd]

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company hagsepr legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outfbf resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and the amount can be reliably esticha®rovisions are measured at the present value
of the expected expenditures to settle the obbgatising a discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money bhadisks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of timedggnized as financing charge.

Restructuring provisions

Restructuring provisions are only recognized whenegal recognition criteria for provisions are

fulfilled. Additionally, the Company needs to folloa detailed formal plan about the business or
part of the business concerned, the location antbeu of employees affected, a detailed estimate
of the associated costs and appropriate time-lline people affected must also have a valid
expectation that the restructuring is being carded or the implementation has been initiated
already.

If the effect of the time value of money is matknqmovisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, thesrigecific to the liability. Where discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to thegogssf time is recognized as a financing charge.

Leases

Leases are classified as either operating or fimanased on the substance of the transaction at the
inception of the lease. Classification is re-assgéfsthe terms of the lease are changed.

Operating lease

Leases in which a signification portion of the sisknd rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payrmeder an operating lease are recognized in the
consolidated statement of earnings on a straigktbiasis over the period of the lease.

Finance lease

Leases in which substantially all the risks and amels of ownership are transferred to the
Company are classified as finance leases. Assetsingeiinance lease criteria are capitalized at
the lower of the present value of the related Igmsanents or the fair value of the leased asset at
the inception of the lease. Minimum lease paymargsapportioned between the finance charges
and the liability. The finance charges are allogate each period during the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest omeheining balance of the liability.

Financial instruments

The Company classifies its financial assets in ftlowing categories: at fair value through
earnings or loans and receivables. The classificatepends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. The Company detesrthe classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.
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Supremex Inc
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2011 and 2010

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Cont'd]
Fair value through earnings
Classification
Financial assets are classified at fair value thinogarnings if acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the short-term, such as financialegsseld for trading, or if so designated by the
Company. Assets in this category principally inéutkrivatives which do not qualify for hedge
accounting and cash.
Recognition and measurement
Financial assets carried at fair value through iegmare initially recognized, and subsequently
carried, at fair value, with changes recognizedthe consolidated statement of earnings.
Transaction costs are expensed.
Loans and receivables
Classification
Loans and receivables are non-derivative finarasakts with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are ireduth current assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the end of the rempptieriod. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Company’s loans and receivables canpdsounts receivable in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Recognition and measurement

Loans and receivables are initially recognizedaat\falue plus transaction costs and subsequently
carried at amortized cost using the effective agemethod.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Compasgsses whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset is impaired. Impairments are oreaksas the excess of the carrying amount over
the fair value and are recognized in the consaiflatatement of earnings.

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities, provisiatividends payable and secured credit facilities

are classified as financial liabilities. They améially recognized at fair value and are subsetjyen
carried at amortized cost using the effective agemethod.
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Supremex Inc
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011 and 2010
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Cont'd]
Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair valoa the date a contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of the Company’s consolidated firerstatements requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affectrdhorted amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of ogeatnt liabilities at the end of the reporting pdrio
However, uncertainty about these assumptions aimdaes could result in outcomes that require
a material adjustment to the carrying amount ofageet or liability affected in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and dtbgrsources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of dags material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next finangiabr are discussed below:

Intangible assets and goodwill

Intangible assets and goodwill arise out of busineembinations for which the Company has

applied the purchase method of accounting. Thehasee method involves the allocation of the

cost of an acquisition to the underlying net asaetglired based on their respective estimated fair
value. As part of this allocation process, the Camypmust identify and attribute values and

estimated lives to the intangible assets acquirbdse determinations involve significant estimates
and assumptions regarding cash flow projectionen@mic risk and weighted average cost of

capital.

These estimates and assumptions determine the amlborated to other identifiable intangible
assets and goodwill as well as the amortizatioroddbpr identifiable intangible assets with finite
lives. If future events or results differ adversdétpm these estimates and assumptions, the
Company could record increased amortization or impnt charges in the future.

As at December 31, 2011, the Company performed edwitl impairment test using the
discounted cash flows method based upon manageméest estimates which reflect the
Company’'s planned course of action in light of near&onditions. The Company concluded that
there was no impairment in the carrying amountt®fgoodwill. The Company will continue to
monitor the resulting impact of market changes fezte 11].
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS [Con t'd]
Employee future benefits

The Company sponsors defined benefit plans progigiension and other post-employment
benefits to covered employees. The determinatiomxpiense and obligations associated with
employee future benefits requires the use of assangpsuch as the expected return on assets
available to fund pension obligations, the discotate to measure obligations, the expected
mortality, the expected retirement age, the experée of future compensation increase and the
expected healthcare cost trend rate. Because tterndeation of the cost and obligations
associated with employee future benefits requites tise of various assumptions, there is
measurement uncertainty inherent in the actuaghlation process [see note 17]. Actual results
will differ from estimated results which are basedassumptions.

Income taxes

The Company computes an income tax provision it edf¢he jurisdictions in which it operates.
However, actual amounts of income tax expense batpme final upon filing and acceptance of
the tax return by the relevant authorities, whickuw subsequent to the issuance of the financial
statements. Additionally, estimation of income &iacludes evaluating the recoverability of
deferred tax assets based on an assessment tilthyeta use the underlying future tax deductions
against future taxable income before they expite @ssessment is based upon existing tax laws
and estimates of future taxable income. To thengxéstimates differ from the final tax return,
earnings would be affected in a subsequent period.

The Company is subject to taxation in numeroussglictions. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determioatiis uncertain during the normal course of
business. The Company maintains provision for uagertax positions that it believes
appropriately reflect its risk with respect to taatters under active discussion, audit, dispute or
appeal with tax authorities, or which are otherwizmsidered to involve uncertainty. These
provisions are made using the best estimate ofatheunt expected to be paid based on a
gualitative assessment of all relevant factors. Tmmpany reviews the adequacy of these
provisions at the end of the reporting period. Hesveit is possible that at some future date an
additional liability could result from audits byxiag authorities. Where the final outcome of these
tax-related matters is different from the amouhtt tvere initially recorded, such differences will
affect the tax provisions in the period in whiclelsuletermination is made.

Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets of the Company, including propeglant and equipment, are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circurnegimdicate that the carrying value of the
assets may not be fully recoverable. Impairmemtsisessed when the discounted expected future
cash flows derived from an asset are less tharcdtsying amount. Impairment losses are
recognized for the amount by which the carryingueabf an asset exceeds its fair value. The
Company periodically reviews the estimated uséfelsl of all long-lived assets and revises them if
necessary.
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December 31, 2011 and 2010
4. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Certain new standards, interpretations, amendnamsmprovements to existing standards were
issued by the International Accounting Standardar8o(“IASB”) or International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC") thare mandatory for accounting periods
beginning after January 1, 2013 or later period®e $tandards impacted that are applicable to the
Company are as follows:

* |FRS 9,Financial Instruments
In October 2010, the IASB issued IFRSEipancial Instruments(“IFRS 97). IFRS 9,
which replaces IAS 3%inancial Instruments: Recognition and Measuremestablishes
principles for the financial reporting of financiaksets and financial liabilities that will
present relevant and useful information to usersfinfncial statements for their
assessment of the amounts, timing and uncertafratg entity’s future cash flows.

* |FRS 10Q Consolidated Financial Statements
In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 10pnsolidated Financial Statemer(t$FRS 10”).
IFRS 10, which replaces SIC-1€onsolidation — Special Purpose Entitiaad part of
IAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statemeptsvides additional guidance
regarding the concept of control as the determifiéagor in whether an entity should be
included within the consolidated financial statetaenf the parent company.

* |FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 1Bisclosure of Interests in Other Entities
(“IFRS 12"). IFRS 12 is a new and comprehensivaddad on disclosure requirements for
all forms of interests in other entities, includij@nt arrangements, associates, special
purpose vehicles and other off balance sheet \eshicl

e |FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 1Bair Value Measuremer{tiIFRS 13"). IFRS 13
will improve consistency and reduce complexity wgyiding a precise definition of fair
value and a single source of fair value measuremedtdisclosure requirements for use
across IFRS.

* ]AS 1, Financial Statement Presentation
In June 2011, the IASB issued amendments to IABiriancial Statement Presentation
(“IAS 1"). This amendment to IAS 1 will improve th@resentation of the components of
other comprehensive income.

« 1AS 19,Employee Benefits
In June 2011, the IASB issued amendments to IAEfhloyee Benefil§IAS 19”). This
amendment to IAS 19 will improve the recognitiondadisclosure requirements for
defined benefits plans.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011 and 2010
4. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS [Cont'd]

These new standards are effective for the Compantgsim and annual consolidated financial
statements commencing January 1, 2013. HoweverlABB has recently issued a proposal to
postpone the mandatory application of IFRSFBhancial Instrumentsto January 1, 2015. The
Company is assessing the impact of these new stisda its consolidated financial statements.

5. BUSINESS ACQUISITION

On September 16, 2010, the Company acquired suiladtamll the assets of Pioneer Envelopes
Ltd. (“Pioneer”) for a cash consideration of $1.8lion using cash generated from the Company’s
operations. The acquisition costs related to ttainsaction amounted to $152,070 and have been
accounted as such in the consolidated statemesaroings in 2010.

The acquisition has been accounted for using thehpse method with operating results included
in the Company’'s earnings from the date of acdaisitThe purchase price allocation is as
follows:

$
Accounts receivab 578,09¢
Inventorie! 483,82:
Prepaid expens 27,02:
Property, plant and equipm: 620,00(
Goodwill 250,00(
Accounts payable and accrued liabili (328,645
Net assets acquire 1,630,29
Consideration
Cast 1,739,922
Balance of sale receivak (109,623

The acquisition of the Pioneer's assets is condistgth Supremex’s acquisition strategy to
identify strategic opportunities within its exigtincore business segment and acquire well-
established companies with complementary strengtits significant opportunities to achieve
meaningful synergies. The synergies are expectednsist primarily of cost savings relating to
raw materials and reduction of overhead expenselsiepresent the goodwiill.
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6. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

December 31 December 31 January 1,

2011 2010 2010

$ $ $

Trade receivablt 17,727,394 18,439,18 19,694,73
Less: Allowance for doubtful accou (237,360) (62,714 (45,353
Trade receivable- net 17,490,034 18,376,47 19,649,38
Other receivable 1,250,46! 1,219,471 1,443,48

18,740,49 19,595,94 21,092,86

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing andearerally on 30-60 days terms.

The aging analysis of trade receivables at eadtrtiag date was as follows:

December 31 December 31 January 1,

2011 2010 2010

$ $ $

Curren 11,990,422 12,724,73 13,603,61
31- 60 day: 4,411,804 4,083,14: 4,973,18
61-90 day: 910,264 1,277,22: 979,05¢
91-120 day 203,12: 298,28: 115,85(
Over 120 day 211,78: 55,79¢ 23,02«
17,727,394 18,439,18 19,694,73

Allowance for doubtful accounts

The changes in the allowance for doubtful accowet® as follows:

December 31 December 31

2011 2010
$ $
Balance, beginning of ye 62,714 45,35!
Charge for the ye 235,527 108,24!
Pioneer acquisition [note — 19,27:
Utilized (61,109 (109,981
Impact of foreign exchange gains (los 228 (174
Balance, end of year 237,360 62,71¢

The Company is exposed to normal credit risk watpect to its accounts receivable and maintains
provisions for potential credit losses. Potent@l $uch losses is mitigated because there is no

significant exposure to any single customer andabge customer credit worthiness is evaluated
before credit is extended.
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December 31, 2011 and 2010

7. INVENTORIES

December 31 December 31 January 1,

2011 2010 2010

$ $ $

Raw material 3,060,489 3,309,471 3,386,04
Work in progres 227,185 217,68: 365,75!
Finished gooc 9,815,518 8,412,56. 10,169,92

13,103,19 11,939,72 13,921,72

The cost of inventories recognized as an expendénafuded in operating expenses, including the
related amortization of property, plant and equiptm&located to inventories, during the year
ended December 31, 2011 is $100,403,733 [20107,$2Q,467].

8. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Pursuant to the restructuring of the Toronto opemat the following items were reclassified as
assets held for sale. The Company has sold aileimes during the year ended December 31, 2011.

December 31, December 31, January 1,

2011 2010 2010

$ $ $

Land and building — 5,568,00! —
Machinery and equipme — 348,04 —
— 5,916,04 —

Current portiol — 5,568,00! —
Long-term portion of assets held for < — 348,04¢ —

An impairment loss of $2.2 million on the measurahwf these assets to the lower of its carrying
amount and its fair value less costs to sell waegrized as amortization and write-down expense

in fiscal 2010.

45



Supremex Inc

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2011 and 2010

9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land,
buildings  Machinery Office and
and leasehold and computer
improvements  equipment  equipment Total
$ $ $
Cost:
At January 1, 201 21,122,42 33,231,44 1,154,46: 55,508,33
Acquisitior 249,89! 2,816,94 167,19! 3,234,03
Pioneer acquisition [note — 605,00 15,00( 620,00(
Disposal (14,021 (2,235,239 (1,118 (2,250,378
Transfer to assets held for s
[note 8] (7,575,803) (945,496) — (8,521,299)
Translation adjustme (650 (38,476 (3,702 (42,828
At December 31, 20: 13,781,84 33,434,17 1,331,84. 48,547,86
Acquisitior 1,743,49; 2,104,47 150,31 3,998,291
Disposal (343,129 (1,337,413 (28,831 (1,709,373
Transfer from assets held {sale — 34,937 — 34,93%
Translation adjustme 25¢ 32,11¢ 1,29( 33,66
At December 31, 2011 15,182,466 34,268,297 1,458,62 50,905,384
Amortization and impairment :
At January 1, 201 1,842,78 12,770,80 838,50! 15,452,09
Amortizatior 539,77t 3,776,13! 157,44 4,473,35i
Write-down [note & 1,542,800 645,45 — 2,188,261
Disposal (14,021 (1,387,223 (1,118 (1,402,362
Transfer to assets held for s
[note 8] (2,007,803) (597,448) — (2,605,251)
Translation adjustme (499 (4,478 (3,206 (8,183
At December 31, 20: 1,903,04 15,203,24 991,62¢ 18,097,91
Amortizatior 455,86 3,777,011, 164,68t 4,397,56.
Disposal (343,129 (776,155 (28,831 (1,148,115
Transfer from assets held for < — 21,57 — 21,577
Translation adjustme 267 6,017 1,48¢ 7,77(C
At December 31, 2011 2,016,044 18,231,698 1,128,96921,376,711
Net book value;
At January 1, 201 19,279,64 20,460,63 315,96: 40,056,224
At December 31, 20: 11,878,80 18,230,92 340,21! 30,449,94
At December 31, 201 13,166,42 16,036,59 325,65: 29,528,67

During the fourth quarter, effective October 1, 20the Company reviewed the useful lives of its
main manufacturing equipment and determined thaadjnstment was needed. The useful lives
have been extended to at least five years consgléneir condition, which resulted in a decreased
amortization charge of approximately $357,000 foe fourth quarter of 2011. The expected
impacts of this charge are: a decrease in the @ation charge of approximately $1.3 million in
2012, $0.2 million in 2013 and a total increas&bB million for the years thereafter up to 2016.
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10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Customer  Non-compete

relationships agreements Total
$ $ $
Cost 60,884,000 755,000 61,639,000
Accumulated amortization:
At January 1, 201 22,428,83 283,33 22,712,17
Amortizatior 6,088,40! 75,50( 6,163,90!
At December 31, 20: 28,517,23 358,83 28,876,07
Amortizatior 6,088,40! 75,50( 6,163,90!
At December 31, 201 34,605,63 434,33 35,039,97
Net book value
At January 1, 201 38,455,16 471,66¢ 38,926,82
At December 31, 20: 32,366,76 396,16¢ 32,762,92
At December 31, 2011 26,278,361 320,668 26,599,029
11. GOODWILL
$
Cost
At January 1, 201 75,501,12
Acquisition of Pionee[note 5 250,00(
At December 31, 201 75,751,12
At December 31, 2011 75,751,125

Impairment test of goodwiill

The Company conducted its annual impairment testt &ecember 31, 2011, in accordance with
its policy described in note 2. The recoverableam of the cash-generating unit exceeded its
carrying values. As a result, no goodwill impainheas recorded.

Valuation technique

The Company uses the discounted cash flows (“D@fethod to determine the value in use of its
cash-generating unit and has not made any chaongié® tvaluation methodology used to assess
goodwill impairment since the last annual impairttest.

Significant assumptions

The income approach is predicated upon the valubefuture cash flows that a business will
generate going forward. The DCF method which wesduas at December 31, 2011 involves
projecting cash flows and converting them into aspnt value equivalent through discounting.
The discounting process uses a rate of returrigltatmmensurate with the risk associated with the
business or asset and the time value of money. dgpsoach requires assumptions about revenue
growth or decline rates, operating margins, tag eaid discount rate.
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11.

12.

GOODWILL [Contd]

Growth or decline of revenue

The assumptions used were based on the Compangimah budget. The Company projected
revenue, operating margins and cash flows for mg@f four years that reflect lower demand and
applied a perpetual long-term growth rate for teequl thereafter. In arriving at its forecasts, the
Company considered past experience, economic tesndell as industry and market trends.

Discount rate

The Company assumed a pre-tax discount rate inr dalealculate the present value of its
projected cash flows. The discount rate represemtedighted average cost of capital (“WACC”)
for comparable companies operating in a similausty. The WACC is an estimate of the overall
required rate of return on an investment for bathté&nd equity owners and serves as the basis for
developing an appropriate discount rate. Deterrginaif the WACC requires separate analysis of
the cost of equity and debt, and considers a risknjum based on an assessment of risks related to
the projected cash flows.

The key assumptions used in performing the impaitrtesst were as follows:

2011 2010
Pre-tax discount rat 15.8% 16.3%
Tax rate 25.7% 25.6%
Perpetual growth rs 0.0% 0.0%

Sensitivity to changesin assumptions

Management believes that an increase of 2% ofridax discount rate or a decrease of 3% of the
perpetual growth rate, in isolation, would decre#ise recoverable amount equivalent to the
carrying value.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

December 31, December 31, January 1,

2011 201( 201(

$ $ $

Trade payable 9,947,326 11,363,27 10,043,23
Accrued liabilitie: 10,042,954 8,748,53 8,491,27.
19,990,280 20,111,81 18,534,51

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and arealigrsettled on 20 to 60 day terms.
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13.

14.

PROVISIONS

In connection with the acquisitions of NPG Enveld{&PG") in 2007, Montreal Envelope Inc.
(“Montreal”) in 2008 and Pioneer [see note 5], @@mpany adopted a plan for the integration and
restructuring of the acquired businesses. As altretie Company recognized a provision for
severance, relocation and exit costs relating ttaiceemployees and facilities of the acquired
businesses. As at December 31, 2011, the amotié gémaining accrued restructuring provision
was $0.5 million. This amount is related to defdrigeverance for employees on long-term
disability and is payable on demand.

The Company incurred additional expenses duringl200id 2010 in the form of severances and
other costs as a result of the restructuring ofTitbonto and Montreal operations. The balance of
the accrued restructuring provision relating te testructuring of the Toronto and Montreal

operations as at December 31, 2011 was $0.2 miflimhis expected to be paid during the first
quarter or 2012.

The following is a summary of amounts accrued aaid felating to restructuring expenses.

2011 201(

$ $

Balance, beginning of ye 931,297 795,01t
Restructuring expenses charged against eal 1,089,401 2,054,51!
Cash paymen (1,364,131)  (1,918,24C
Balance, end of year 656,567 931,29

DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTIONS PAYABLE

Dividends declared from January 1, 2011 to DecerbeR011 were as follows:

Per share Dividend
Declaration date Record date Payment date $ $
March 18, 201 March 31, 201 April 15, 201: 0.0z 878,93:
June 17, 201 June 30, 201 July 15, 201 0.0z 878,93
November 8, 201 November 30, 201 December 15, 20: 0.0z 878,93
Total 2,636,799

Prior to the conversion of the Fund to a corposttecture [see note 1], Supremex Income Fund
made monthly distributions of $292,978 on its aaalid cash to unitholders of record on the last
business day of each month, payable on or aboutlftb day of the following month.
Distributions for the period from January 1, 20dMecember 31, 2010 amounted to $3,515,736.
The December distribution was declared and acdru@dcember 2010 and paid to unitholders on
January 17, 2011.
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15. SECURED CREDIT FACILITIES

On November 4, 2011, the Company renewed and arddtsleredit agreement. The renewed
secured credit facilities consist of a $20 milli@volving facility ($35 million before the renewal)

a $50 million term credit facility ($65.6 millionnd $73.1 million as at December 31, 2010 and
January 1, 2010, respectively) and a $25 millioguéition/capital expenditures facility (none
before the renewal). The facilities bear intereést #oating rate based on the Canadian prime rate
or bankers’ acceptance rates, plus an applicabigiman those rates.

The revolving credit facility may be used to refica existing credit facilities, finance working
capital requirements and for other general corpguatposes. The acquisition/capital expenditures
facility may be used to finance permitted acquisisi and permitted capital expenditures.

The revolving and term credit facilities mature Blovember 4, 2015. The acquisition/capital
expenditures credit facility matures on Novembe2(3 with the option to extend up to

November 4, 2015. The term credit facility is regalg in quarterly principal instalments of

$1,250,000. In addition, 50% of the annual excesh dlow, as defined in the credit agreement,
will be applied against the term credit facilitytlife debt to EBITDA ratio rises above 2.50, or 25%
if the debt to EBITDA ratio falls between 2.50 aA@d0. No cash flow sweep are required if the
debt to EBITDA ratio falls below 2.00, which wa®tbase in 2011.

Amounts owned under revolving and term credit faed are as follows:

December 31, December 31 January 1,
2011 201( 201(
$ $ $
Revolving credit facility 5,000,000 4,290,886 20,324,181
Term credit facilit 50,000,000 65,625,00 73,125,00
Less: deferred financing costs, (823,066) (846,010 (1,569,804
54,176,934 69,069,87 91,879,37
Current portiol (5,000,000) (14,415,48¢ (7,500,00C
Long-term portion of secured cre(
facilities 49,176,934 54,654,387 84,379,377

Under the terms of the secured credit facilitibg, Company is required, among other conditions,
to meet certain covenants. The Company was in damg@ with these covenants as at
December 31, 2011. The secured credit facilities eollateralized by hypothec and security
interests covering all present and future assettseo€ompany and its subsidiaries.

Minimum required payments on secured credit fagiliire as follows:

$
201z 5,000,00
201c 5,000,00t
201¢ 5,000,00t
201¢ 40,000,00
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15.

16.

SECURED CREDIT FACILITIES [Cont'd]

As at December 31, 2011, the interest rate onahlielving and term credit facilities was 3.53%

(4.90% and 5.25% respectively as at December 310,28hd 4.85% and 4.76% respectively as at
January 1, 2010). As of January 14, 2011, the Comnmntered into an interest rate swap
agreement for an amount of $30 million at a fixatkrof 2.84% until January 14, 2016, excluding

the applicable margin.

Financing charges are as follows:

2011 2010

$ $

Interest on secured credit facilit 3,304,402 3,856,921
Other intere 12,26( 12,95¢
Amortization of deferred financing co 881,79¢ 851,10!
Loss on valuation of derivative financial instrurt 1,776,293 —

5,974,751 4,720,98.

INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense

The major components of income tax expense recednizthe consolidated statement of earnings
were as follows:

2011 2010
$ $
Current income tax:
Current income tax exper 4,289,97 750,89°
Deferred income tax
Originatior and (reversal) of temporary differen (1,092,562) 2,210,95:
Income tax expens 3,197,417 2,961,85!

Income taxes on items recognized in other compi@heincome were as follows:

2011 201(
$ $
Deferred income tax related to items credited diyec
to equity during the yee
Deferred tax benefit on recognized actuarial los
defined benefit pension plans (4,091,882) (492,185)
Deferred tax benefit on recognized actuarial las
other post-retirement benefit (9,944) (7,282)
Income taxbenefit charged to othe
comprehensive incom (4,101,826) (499,467)
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16. INCOME TAXES [Cont'd]

The income tax expense differs from the expendeatbald be obtained by applying the combined
Canadian income tax (federal and provincial) aeves:

2011 201(
$ $
Earnings before income ta: 11,512,29 12,779,66
Income tax expense at combined federal and pral
statutory rate of 27.40% [20-29.23% 3,154,368 3,735,497
Effect of change in enacted tax r: 88,24! 280,36

Impact of intere: expense of Supremex paid to the F

(prior to conversion into corporate structure)matiated on

consolidation — (1,270,246)
Impact of amortization of deferred compensatior

deductible for tax purpos — 92,098
Nonr-deductible expenses and of (45,196 124,13
Income tax expens 3,197,41 2,961,85!

Changes in statutory rate mainly result from thduotion in the federal and Ontario corporation
tax rate, as well as a change in the proportioth@fCompany’s earnings in the two jurisdictions,
which have different tax rates

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax relates to the following

Consolidated statemer Consolidated statemer
of financial position of earnings
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2011 201(¢ 201¢ 2011 201¢
$ $ $ $ $
Deferred tax assets
Accrued pension benefit
liability 4,950,263 1,790,470 1,406,756 932,089 108,471
Goodwill 1,625,168 1,839,833 2,037,010 214,665 197,177
Othel 502,94( 489,57 433,54 (3,419 —
Derivative financial liability 456,759 — — (456,759) —
Non-capital losses 162,123 173,744 4,185,320 11,621 4,011,576
Initial public offering expens: — 211,36:. 1,033,31 211,36: 821,95!
7,697,253 4,504,986 9,095,945 909,559 5,139,177
Deferred tax liabilities
Intangible assets 5,891,375 7,363,061 8,848,543 1,471,686 1,485,482
Property, plant and equipment 3,448,338 3,819,238 4,987,876 370,900 1,168,637
Othel 539,93: 699,46 924,82( 159,53! 274,10¢

9,879,645 11,881,766 14,761,239 2,002,121 2,928,224

Deferred tax (recovery)
expense (1,092,562) 2,210,95:
Net deferred income tax
liabilities 2,182,39 7,376,78  5,665,29.
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16. INCOME TAXES [Cont'd]

Reconciliation of net deferred tax liabilities

17.

2011 2010
$ $
Balance- beginning of the ye: 7,376,780 5,665,29.
Tax (recovery expense during the year recognized in
consolidated statement of earni (1,092,562 2,210,953
Tax benefit recognized in other comprehensive irg (4,101,82¢€ (499,467
Balance- end of yeal 2,182,392 7,376,78

EMPLOYEE DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS

(a) Pension Plans

The Company maintains three defined benefit penglans covering certain salaried and hourly
employees. Two of these pension plans are hybriduse they also have a defined contribution
component. All defined benefit pension plans areléd.

The defined benefit and defined contribution plergenses included in operating, selling, general
and administrative expenses are as follows:

2011 2010
$ $
Defined benefit plan:
Current service cos 2,399,701 2,431,701
Interest expenson benefit obligatio 4,258,00! 4,404,101
Expected return on plan as: (4,613,00C  (4,165,60C
Past service cos — 5,00(
Settlemer — 144,00(
Defined benefit plans expen 2,044,701 2,819,201
Defined contribution plan exper 496,60( 477,00(
2,541,301 3,296,20

Pension plans expense

53



Supremex Inc

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011 and 2010
17. EMPLOYEE DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS [Cont'd]

The following table presents the changes in theuact benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets, as well as the funded status of fireedebenefit plans.

December 31, December 31,

2011 2010
$ $
Change in accrued benefit obligation
Benefit obligation, beginning of the y« 78,380,40 71,445,60
Current service ca 2,399,70! 2,431,701
Interest cot 4,258,00! 4,404,101
Employees contributic 606,10( 639,60(
Actuarial losses on obligati 10,885,20 4,352,101
Benefits pai (4,932,300 (5,041,70C
Settlemer — 144,00(
Past service cc — 5,00(
Benefit obligation, end of ye 91,597,10 78,380,40
Change in planasset
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of the 73,126,80 67,231,40
Expected return on plan as: 4,613,001 4,165,60!
Actuarial losse (6,755,80C 2,889,901
Employees contributic 606,10( 639,60(
Employer contributio 5,688,201 3,242,001
Benefits pai (4,932,300 (5,041,70C
Fair value of plan assets, end of 72,346,00 73,126,80
Funded statu- Plan defici (29,251,10C (5,253,60C
Asset limit and minimum funding adjustm — (1,730,70C
Net amount recognized as accrued pension benefit
liability (19,251,100) (6,984,300)
The defined benefit plans amount recognized inrotoenprehensive loss, before taxation, is as
follows:
2011 2010
$ $
Actuarial losse (17,641,00C (188,900
Asset limit and minimum fundinadjustmer 1,730,70! (1,730,70C
(15,910,30C (1,919,600

The cumulative amount of actuarial losses recoghize the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income is $17,829,900 as at Dece®ih@011 [2010 - $188,900].
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The Company expects to contribute approximately $6illion to its defined benefit and defined
contribution pension plans in 2012.

The assumptions used in computing the net pensisinwere as follows:

2011 2010

% %
Discount rate for accrued benefit obliga: 4.50 5.5C
Discount rate for net pension ¢ 5.50 6.2F
Expected return on plan as: 6.25 6.2F
Rate of compensation incre 3.5( 3.5(C

The expected rate of return on assets is basetieoexpected rate of return on each asset class
category using a stochastic projection tool thategates multiple expected-return scenarios over
long periods of time for different asset classegdeted fees payable by the plan are deducted
from this expected rate of return. The actualrretan plan assets was a loss of $2,142,800 for the
year ended Decemb@i, 2011 [2010 - gain of $7,055,500].

The weighted average allocation of plan assets Bs@ember 3k as follows:

2011 2010
% %
Equity securitie 62.0 61.c
Debi 31.7 33.¢
Cash and shc-term securitie 6.3 4.7
Total 100.00 100.(

The pension plans have an investment policy with filllowing target asset allocations: 57%
equity securities, 42% debt securities and 1% ghkom securities with a tolerable deviation of
such allocation.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, there were naetgx shares held in the Company’'s
pension plans.

Sensitivity analysis
For the Company, a 0.25% increase or decreaseeiridtount rate would have decreased or
increased the defined benefit obligation by apprately $3.8 million as at December 31, 2011. A

0.25% increase or decrease in the expected rattwh would have decreased or increased the
pension expense by approximately $0.2 million d&3estember 31, 2011.
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(b) Post-retirement benefits other than pension

The following tables provide a reconciliation ofetiechange in the accrued benefit obligation
of the plans.

December 31, December 31,

2011 2010
$ $
Change in accrued benefit obligation
Benefit obligation, beginning of ye 648,30( 657,00(
Interest co: 33,60( 38,70(
Benefits pai (70,900 (75,800
Actuarial losse 38,60( 28,40(
Benefit obligation, end of year 649,60( 648,30(

Post-employment and other retirement benefits afamot funded.

The other post-retirement benefit cost includedperating, selling, general and administrative
expenses is composed of the interest cost on itiabif $33,600 for the year ended
DecembeB1, 2011 [2010 - $38,700].

The other post-retirement benefits amount recoghize other comprehensive loss, before

taxation, consists of actuarial losses of $38,600L) - $28,400]. The cumulative amount of

actuarial losses recognized in the consolidata@rsint of comprehensive income is $67,000 as
at December 31, 2011 [2010 - $28,400].

The assumptions used in the measurement of the &uvyigpother post-retirement benefit cost
were as follows:

2011 2010
% %
Weighted-average assumptior
Discount rate for benefit obligati 4.50 5.5(C
Discount rate fonet periodic benefit cc 5.50 6.28

As at December 31, 2011, the assumed health ed tate for 2011 was 6.7%, progressively
declining to 2.5% in 2024. A one-percentage-polrenge in assumed health care cost trend rates
would have no material impact.
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Share capital

An unlimited number of commons shares are issuaBih common share represents a
shareholder’s proportionate undivided intereshim€ompany. Each common share confers to its
holder the right to one vote at any meeting of shalders and to participate equally and rateably
in any dividends of the Company, if any, and, ia #vent of any required distribution of all of
the property of the Company, in the net asseth@fTompany remaining after satisfaction of all
liabilities.

Fund units

The Fund Declaration of Trust provided that anmitéd number of units may be issued. Each
unit was transferable and represented an equaVidedi beneficial interest in any distributions
from the Fund and in the net assets of the Furldus were of the same class with equal rights
and privileges. Each unit entitled the holder tatipgate equally in all allocations and
distributions and to one vote at all meetings dthatders for each whole unit held.

The Fund units were redeemable at any time atptieroof the holder at the lesser of 90% of the
weighted average price of the Fund unit duringlés¢ ten trading days of the units on an open
market and the closing market price on the redemptiate. All redemptions were subject to a
maximum of $50,000 in cash redemptions by the Rorghy particular month. Redemptions in
excess of this amount would have been paid by Waydistributionin specieof the assets of the
Fund.

Employees units

Units issued as of March 31, 2006, at the timehefihitial public offering, included 2,364,228
units valued at $23,642,280 issued to employeea &@sh consideration of $23,642 to amend the
then existing management profit sharing plan. Thesis vested over four years and the
unamortized value of such units was recorded asridgf compensation and recognized as
compensation expense over the vesting period. Brapfowere entitled to distributions on these
units. Each unit entitles the holder to participag@ially in all allocations and distributions oéth
Fund and to one vote at all meetings of unitholders
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The change in share capital and fund units waelks\s:

Supremex Income Funu Supremex Inc
Number of

Number Fund common Share

of units units shares capital

$ $

Balance as of Janual, 201( 29,297,76 282,798,32 — —

Balance, as of December 31, 2 29,297,76 282,798,32 — —
Conversion into a corporatic

[note 1] (29,297,767) (282,798,322) 29,297,767 10,000,000
Balance, as of December 31, 20 — —  29,297,76 10,000,00

On January 1, 2011, all the outstanding units efRbind were exchanged for common shares of
Supremex on a one-for-one basis [see note 1].

Pursuant to the normal course issuer bid, whiclabem December 5, 2011, the Company could
purchase for cancellation up to 1,500,000 commamreshuntil December 4, 2012. During the
year ended December 31, 2011, the Company did mothpse any common shares for
cancellation.

19. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Changes in the accumulated other comprehensivevieissas follows:

Foreign
Currency
Translation
Balance as at January 1, 2 (69,151
Change during the ye (14,528
Balance as at December 31, 2 (83,679
Change during the ye 7,51¢
Balance as at December 31, 20 (76,161
20. OPERATING, SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPE NSES
2011 2010
$ $
Wages and salari 35,870,92 35,546,45
Social security cos 5,424,34 5,412,95
Pension costs [see note 2,541,30! 3,296,201
Pos-employment benefits other than pensi[see note 1° 33,60( 38,70(
Sharebased program expen 18,257 26,02¢
Employee benefits expen: 43,888,41 44,320,33
Raw materials and other purche 53,728,40 56,860,80
Othel 16,737,30 18,755,24
114,354,13 119,936,38
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21. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND GUARANTEES
Operating lease commitments
The Company has entered into operating leases yrfainbuildings.
Future minimum rentals payable under non-canceélapkrating leases are as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2011 2010

$ $

Within one yee 1,682,755 2,266,89
After one year but not more than five ye 4,418,411 4,687,80
More than five yea 1,513,80! 2,228,81

7,614,980 9,183,50:

Legal claim

In the normal course of its operations, the Compgangxposed to various claims, disputes and
legal proceedings. These disputes may involve nomsemuncertainties and the outcome of

individual cases is unpredictable. According to agement, these disputes should not have a
significant negative impact on the Company’s firiahposition.

Guarantees

In the normal course of business, the Company hi&seal into agreements that contain features
which meet the definition of a guarantee. Theseea@ments may require the Company to
compensate counterparties for costs and lossesréacas a result of various events including
breaches of representations and warranties, loss ddmages to property, claims that may arise
while providing services, and environmental ligl#§. These agreements provide for
indemnification and guarantees to counterpartidelbswvs:

Operating leases

The Company has general indemnity clauses in mdrnits aeal estate leases whereby it, as
lessee, indemnifies the lessor against liabilitedated to the use of leased property. These leases
mature at various dates through September 2019n@hee of the agreements varies based on
individual contracts and this prevents the Compaom estimating the total potential amount it
would have to pay to lessors, if any. Historicalllye Company has not made any significant
payments under such agreements, has insurance agevdor certain of the obligations
undertaken, and, as December 31, 2011, has notdezt@ny liability associated with these
indemnifications.
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Compensation of key management personnel of Suprenas follows:

2011 2010

$ $

Shor-term employee benef 1,933,249 1,413,93
Pos-employment benefit 73,216 61,54¢
Sharebased payment transacti 18,257 26,02¢
2,024,72. 1,501,51

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amawctsgnized as an expense related to key
management personnel during the reporting period.

23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities in the stateméfihancial position were as follows:

December 31, 2011 Assets
at fair value Other
Loans and through financial
receivables earnings  Derivatives liabilities Total
$ $ $ $ $
Cash — 2,606,33 — — 2,606,33
Accounts receivab 18,740,49 — — — 18,740,49
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities — — — (19,990,280) (19,990,280)
Provisions — — — (656,567) (656,567)
Secured credit facilitie — — — (55,000,00C (55,000,00C
Derivative financial liabilit — — (1,776,293 — (1,776,293
Total 18,740,499 2,606,332 (1,776,293) (75,646,847) (56,076,309)
December 31, 2010 Assets
at fair value Other
Loans and through financial
receivables earnings Derivatives liabilities Total
$ $ $ $ $
Cash — 148,87: — — 148,87
Accounts receivable 19,595,945 — — — 19,595,945
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities — — — (20,111,812) (20,111,812)
Provisions — — — (931,297) (931,297)
Distribution payabl — — — (292,978 (292,978
Secured credit facilitie — — — (69,915,88¢€ (69,915,88¢€
Total 19,595,94 148,87: — (91,251,97% (71,507,154
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23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [Cont'd]

January 1, 2010 Assets
at fair value Other
Loans and through financial
receivables earnings  Derivatives liabilities Total
$ $ $ $ $
Cash — 38,96: — — 38,96:
Accounts receivab 21,092,86 — — — 21,092,86
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities — — — (18,534,512) (18,534,512)
Provisions — — — (795,018) (795,018)
Distribution payabl — — — (1,464,888 (1,464,888
Secured credit facilitie — — — (93,449,181 (93,449,181
Derivative financial liability — — (808,652) — (808,652)
Total 21,092,867 38,962 (808,652]114,243,599) (93,920,422)
Fair values

The carrying value of financial assets designatedash and accounts receivable and of financial
liabilities designated as accounts payable anduadcliabilities, and provisions and distribution
payable approximates their fair value since theyexpected to be realized or settled in the short
term.

The carrying amount of secured credit facilitiepragimates its fair value given its nature and
floating interest rate.

The fair value of interest rate swap is measuréagus generally accepted valuation technique,
that is, the discounted value of the differenceveen the value of the swap based on variable
interest rates (estimated using the yield curveaftiicipated interest rates) and the value of the
swap based on the swap’s fixed interest rate. Tbmpany's credit risk is also taken into
consideration in determining fair value.

For the interest rate swap, the Company categothrdair value measurement in Level 2, as it
is primarily derived from observable market inpuktst is, interest rates.

Management of risks arising from financial instruments

In the normal course of business, the Company sed to a range of financial risks, which
include credit risk, liquidity risk and market risko limit the effects of these risks on revenues,
expenses and cash flows, the Company can avdildfsearious derivative financial instruments.
The Company’s management is responsible for detémmithe acceptable level of risk and uses
derivative financial instruments only to managestBrg or anticipated risks, commitments or
obligations based on past experience.

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from cash and accounts recedgabh order to minimize the credit exposure,

the Company’s cash is placed with Canadian Schddbhémnks.
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Credit risk stems primarily from the potential iléd of clients to discharge their obligations.
Accounts receivable credit risk is mitigated througstablished monitoring activities, lack of
customer concentration and the Company’s diversifigstomer base. Historically, the Company
has never made any significant write-off of acceumceivable. As at December 31, 2011 and
2010, total trade accounts receivable over 90 gagsdue amounted to less than 5% (see note 6).
The Company does not hold collateral as security.

Liquidity risk

The Company is exposed to the risk of being unabl@onour its financial commitments within
the deadlines set out under the terms of such comenis and at a reasonable price. The
Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adgqucash balances and by appropriately
using the Company’s revolving credit facility. TR@®mpany continuously reviews both actual
and forecasted cash flows to ensure that it haquade credit facility capacity. The Company
continuously reviews its exposure to interest flatgtuations and has decided at this time to enter
into a derivatives contract (see note 15).

The table below sets forth the contractual undistedi cash flows of the non-derivative and
derivative financial liabilities by maturity based the remaining period from December 31, to
the contractual maturity date.

December 31, 201 Less than 3to 12
3 months months  1to 5 years Total
$ $ $ $
Accounts payable a
accrued liabilities 19,990,280 — — 19,990,280
Provision: 656,56 — — 656,56
Secured credfacilities 1,250,00! 3,750,001 50,000,00 55,000,00
Interest on secured cre:
facilities 572,487 1,840,633 5,272,358 7,685,478
Derivative financial liabilitie 104,25( 312,75( 696,00!( 1,113,001

22,573,584 5,903,383 55,968,358 84,445,325

December 31, 2010 Less than 3to 12
3 months months  1to 5 years Total
$ $ $ $
Accounts payable a
accrued liabilities 20,111,812 — — 20,111,812
Provision: 931,29 — — 931,29
Distribution payabl 292,97¢ — — 292,97¢
Secured credit faciliti¢ 1,875,000 12,540,48 55,500,39 69,915,88
Interest on secured cre:
facilities 897,575 2,406,827 24,328 3,328,730

24,108,662 14,947,316 55,524,725 94,580,703
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market gsiclue to foreign exchange rates and interest
rates will affect the value of the Company’s finahénstruments. The objective of market and
risk management is to mitigate and control expasusihin acceptable parameters while
optimizing the return on risk.

Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate fluctuat@mits secured credit facilities. The Company
manages interest rate exposure by maintaining anbadl portfolio of fixed and variable loans
and borrowings. Furthermore, interest rate fluétuest could have an impact on interest expense
on its revolving credit facility and on income tk®mpany derives from cash. The Company
invests its cash in highly liquid investment instents to safeguard its capital while generating a
reasonable return.

On December 31, 2011, a 25 basis-point rise oiirfatiterest rates, assuming all other variables
remained unchanged, would have resulted, respggtivea $64,690 increase or decrease in the
Company’s net earnings for the year ended DeceBhe2011.

Foreign exchange risk

The Company is exposed to fluctuations in US exghamates because a portion of its activities
are conducted in the United States and a portioitsgburchases and capital expenditures are
made in US dollars. The Company continuously regi@#a& exposure to fluctuations in the US
exchange rate and has decided at this time nobter énto derivatives as the exposure is not
significant.

As at December 31, 2011, net financial liabilitie6 the Company in Canadian dollars,
denominated in US dollars, totalled $2,518,712 (®0%2,437,236).

On December 31, 2011, a 5% rise or fall in the @aradollar against the US dollar, assuming
all other variables remained unchanged, would heselted, respectively, in a $125,936 increase
or decrease in the Company’s net earnings for ¢lae then ended, whereas other comprehensive
loss would have remained unchanged. However, tbeeathange in net earnings may have been
offset by adjustments in Canadian pricing requicdemain competitive with imports from the
United States, mainly in commodity products.

Capital management

The Company’s capital consists of equity and setaredit facilities. The Company maintains a
capital level that enables it to meet several dbjes:

» Assure the longevity of its capital to support coméd operations;

» Satisfy certain financial covenants under the sstoredit facilities;

» Preserve its financial flexibility to benefit fropotential opportunities as they arise; and
e Sustain growth in share value.
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24.

25.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [Cont'd]

The Company continually assesses the adequacyg oéjffital structure and capacity and makes
adjustments in view of the Company’s strategy, eagn conditions and the risk characteristics
of the business to achieve the above objectives.Gdmpany also monitors its capital to ensure
full adherence to the “secured credit facilitiesfEBA” and “fixed charge covenant” ratios as
defined in the credit facilities agreement.

The Company’s capital structure is composed oftggaecured credit facilities, less cash. The
capital structure of continuing operations is dbfes:

December 31, December 31, January 1,

2011 2010 2010
$ $ $
Secured credit faciliti¢ 55,000,00 69,915,88 93,449,18
Cast (2,606,332 (148,874 (38,962
Net deb 52,393,66 69,767,01 93,410,21
Equity 64,667,27 70,828,75 65,674,65

The Company is not subject to any externally imdosapital requirements other than certain
restrictions under the terms of its secured créattlities, which relate mainly to permitted
acquisitions.

SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The Company currently operates in one reportingnesd. the manufacturing and sale of

envelopes. The Company’s non-current assets anmbuiate$130,876,557 in Canada and

$1,002,270 in the United States as at December281]1 [$138,363,493 and $948,554,

respectively, as at December 31, 2010]. The Coniparyenue amounted to $132,290,658 in
Canada and $11,601,541 in the United States foydhe ended December 31, 2011 based on
customer location [2010 - $142,487,915 in Canadd $h0,636,483 in the United States,

respectively].

TRANSITION TO IFRS

The Company’s consolidated financial statementgteryear ended December 31, 2011 are the
first annual financial statements to comply witlREand these consolidated financial statements
were prepared in accordance with IFRSFirst-time adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standardg he first date at which IFRS was applied was Janlia010 (“Transition
Date”). In accordance with IFRS, the Company has:

» Provided comparative financial information;

» Applied the same accounting policies throughoupetiods presented,;

» Retrospectively applied all effective IFRS standarthat are effective as at
December 31, 2011, as required; and

» Applied certain optional exemptions and certain dadory exceptions as applicable for
first time IFRS adopters.
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The Company’'s consolidated financial statementsvpeeviously prepared in accordance with
Canadian GAAP.

Elected exemption from full retrospective applicatbn

In preparing these consolidated financial statemgnaccordance with IFRS 1, the Company has
applied certain of the optional exemptions froml fidtrospective application of IFRS. The
optional exemptions applied are described below.

(a)Business combinations

The Company elected not to retrospectively applyRSBR (revised), Business
Combinationsto business combinations that occurred priotdolransition Date and such
business combinations have not been restated. Awgwgll arising on such business
combinations before the Transition Date has nonbadjusted from the carrying value
previously determined under Canadian GAAP as dtreSapplying these exemptions and is
their deemed cost at the date of the acquisition.

(b )Employee benefits

The Company elected to recognize all cumulativea@l gains and losses and past service
costs on defined benefit plans that existed dtrassition Date in opening deficit.

Mandatory exception to retrospective application

In preparing these consolidated financial statemgnaccordance with IFRS 1, the Company has
applied a mandatory exception from full retrospextapplication of IFRS. The mandatory
exception applied from full retrospective applicatof IFRS is described below.

(a ) Estimates

Hindsight is not used to create or revise estimalbg estimates previously made by the
Company under Canadian GAAP were not revised faligadion of IFRS except where
necessary to reflect any difference in accountolies.

Reconciliations of Canadian GAAP to IFRS

IFRS 1 requires an entity to reconcile equity, @a®, comprehensive income and cash flows for
prior periods. The impact of conversion to IFRStha Company’s consolidated statements of
cash flows compared with its previously releaseddd@én GAAP consolidated statements of
cash flows is directly related to the impacts or ttonsolidated statements of earnings,
consolidated statements of comprehensive incomettandonsolidated statements of financial
position as described below. The items of the dafeted financial statements of cash flows
most affected by the conversion to IFRS are: nemiegs, amortization of deferred
compensation, change in accrued pension bendiitifya business acquisition, deferred income
tax expense and variation in provisions.
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The following represents the reconciliation fromn@dian GAAP to IFRS for the respective

periods for equity, net earnings and compreherias@me:

Reconciliation of Equity

As of December 31, January 1,
Note 2010 2010
Shareholders’ equity under Canadian G/ 80,084,227 73,345,63
Differences decreasing reported shareholc
equity:
Employee benefi A (8,987,151 (7,670,978
Business combinatio C (268,375 —
Total equity under IFRS 70,828,753 65,674,653
Reconciliation of Net Earnings
For the year endet December 31
Note 2010
Net earnings under Canadian GA 8,993,87.
Differencesincreasing (decreasing) reported earni
Employee benefi A 132,36:
Deferred compensati B 945,43
Business combinatio C (268,375
Foreign currency translati D 14,52’
Net earnings under IFRS 9,817,818
Reconciliation of Comprehensive Income
For the year endet December 31
Note 2010
Comprehensive income under Canadian G, 8,993,87.
Differences (decreasing) increasing reported cohgirsive
income:
Employee benefi A (1,316,173
Deferred compensati B 945,43
Businesscombination C (268,375
Comprehensive income under IFRS 8,354,757
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A. Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Upon adoption of IFRS, actuarial gains and lossesetognized immediately in other
comprehensive income, as permitted by IASH®ployee Benefit§IAS 19”). Under
previous Canadian GAAP, the Company used the awrridethod to amortize
actuarial gains or losses over the average rengaservice life of the employees. At
the Transition Date, all previously unrecognizechalative actuarial gains and losses,
including the unamortized transitional obligatievere recognized in deficit, resulting
in an increase of deficit of $6.6 million.

In compliance with IAS 19, past service costs amgnized immediately if vested, or
on a straight-line basis over the average remain@sjing period if unvested. Under
Canadian GAAP, past service costs were recogniaed the expected average
remaining service period of active employees exqubtd receive benefits under the
plan. At the Transition Date, all previously unrgoized past service costs amounting
to $0.1 million were fully vested and as such wex@gnized in the deficit.

In addition, IAS 19 and IFRIC 14AS 19, The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirement and their Interactidimit the amount that can be
recognized as an asset on the statement of filgmusition on the present value of
available contribution reductions or refunds plusegognized actuarial losses and
unrecognized past service costs. This restrictasirbsulted in a limit on the asset that
can be recorded for one of the Company’s definetkfiteplans, which has led to a
further reduction of $1.0 million that has beenogtized in deficit at the Transition
Date.

B. Deferred compensation

The Company amortized the deferred compensatioa straight-line basis over 4 years
under Canadian GAAP. Under IFRS, the deferred coisgt@n should be amortized using
the graded approach over the vesting period ofShpremex Income Fund units. The
impact of this difference at the Transition Datesvaa increase of $0.9 million to deficit.
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C.

Business combinations

The Company included all acquisition-related anstreesturing costs in goodwill under
Canadian GAAP. Under IFRS, the acquisition-reladed restructuring costs should be
expensed as incurred. As a result, the acquisttamts of $152,070 and the restructuring
provision of $208,843 related to the Pioneer adtjois in September 2010, previously
included in goodwill, were expensed under IFRS.

Foreign currency translation

Under Canadian GAAP, the Company had determined ittaUS subsidiary was an

integrated foreign operation and that the funcfioaad reporting currency was the
Canadian dollar. IFRS requires that the functianatency of each entity in a consolidated
group be determined separately based on the cyrreficthe primary economic

environment in which the entity operates. Under 3i-Ehe functional currency of the US
subsidiary is the US dollar.
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25. TRANSITION TO IFRS [Cont'd]

Restated Supremex consolidated financial statements

The following are reconciliations of the consolighfinancial statements previously presented under
Canadian GAAP to the amended consolidated finastiééments prepared under IFRS.

Reconciliation of Consolidated Statement of Finanel Position as of Januaryl, 2010

Canadian
Canadian GAAP IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS
GAAP accounts balance  adjustments reclassifications balance accounts
ASSETS
Cash 38,962 — — 38,962 Cash
Accounts receivable 21,092,867 — — 21,092,867 Ant®receivable
Inventories 13,921,726 — — 13,921,726 Inventories
Prepaid expenses 1,429,144 — — 1,429,144 Preppiehers
Future income tax 3,635,038 — (3,635,038) —
Total current assets 40,117,737 — (3,635,038) 36,482,699 Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, Property, plant and
net 40,056,241 — — 40,056,241 equipment
Accrued pension benefit asset 4,985,800 (10,473,300 5,487,500 —
Intangible assets, net 38,926,829 — — 38,926,82%angible assets
Goodwill 75,501,12 — — 75,501,12 Goodwill
Total assets 199,587,732 (10,473,300) 1,852,462 190,966,894 Total assets
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Accounts payable and accrued Accounts payable and
liabilities 18,534,51 — — 18,534,51 accrued liabilitie
Accruedrestructuring provisic 795,01¢ — — 795,01¢ Provision:
Distribution payable 1,464,888 — — 1,464,888 Dimition payable
Current portion of secured Current portion of secured
credit facilities 7,500,00! — — 7,500,00 credit facilities
Current portion of
Current portion of derivative financial
derivative liability 808,65: 808,65: liability
Total current liabilities 29,103,070 — — 29,103,070 Total current liabilities
Secured credit facilitie 84,379,37 — — 84,379,37 Secured credit faciliti¢
Deferred income tax
Future income tax 11,945,354 (2,645,022) (3,635,038) 5,665,294 liabilities
Accrued pension benefit
— — 5,487,500 5,487,500 liability
Other post-retirement benefits Other post-retirement
obligatior 814,30( (157,300 — 657,00( benefit obligation:
Unitholders’ equity Equity
Fund unit 282,798,32 — — 282,798,32 Fund unit
Contributed surplt 7,625,42. — — 7,625,42.  Contributed surplt
Deferred compensation (1,260,512) 945,433 (315,079) Deferred compensation
Deficit (215,817,60¢ (8,547,260 — (224,364,865 Deficit
Accumulated other
— (69,151) — (69,151) comprehensive loss
73,345,63 (7,670,978 — 65,674,65 Total equity
199,587,73 (10,473,30C 1,852,46. 190,966,89 Total liabilities and equity
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Reconciliation of Consolidated Statement of Finanal Position as of Decembe81, 2010

Canadian
Canadian GAAP IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS
GAAP accounts balance adjustments reclassifications balance accounts
ASSETS
Cash 148,874 — — 148,874 Cash
Accounts receivable 19,595,945 — — 19,595,945 Ant®teceivable
Inventories 11,939,720 — — 11,939,720 Inventories
Prepaid expens 425,19: — — 425,19 Prepaid expens
Assets held for sale 5,568,000 — — 5,568,000 Adselttfor sale
Futureincome ta; 379,41( — (379,410 —
Total current assets 38,057,142 — (379,410) 37,677,732 Total current assets
Assets held for sa 348,04¢ — — 348,04¢( Assets held for sa
Property, plant and equipment, Property, plant and
net 30,449,945 — — 30,449,945 equipment
Accrued pension benefit as 5,222,60 (12,206,90C 6,984,30 —
Intangible assets, r 32,762,92 — — 32,762,92 Intangible asse
Goodwill 76,058,491 (307,366) — 75,751,125 Goodwill
Total asset: 182,899,15 (12,514,26€ 6,604,891 176,989,77 Total asset
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Accounts payable and accrued Accounts payable and
liabilities 20,111,812 — — 20,111,812 accrued liabilities
Accrued restructuring provision 931,297 — — 931,29Provisions
Income tax payab 745,68 — — 745,68 Income tax payab
Distribution payable 292,978 — — 292,978 Distribatpayable
Current portion of secured Current portion of secured
credit facilities 14,415,48 — — 14,415,48 credit facilities
Total current liabilities 36,497,259 — — 36,497,259 Total current liabilities
Secured credit facilitie 54,654,38 — — 54,654,38 Secured credit faciliti¢
Deferred income tax
Future income tax 10,894,031 (3,137,841) (379,410) 7,376,780 liabilities
Accrued pension benefit
— — 6,984,301 6,984,301 liability
Other post-retirement benefits Other post-retirement
obligatior 769,20( (120,900 — 648,30( benefits obligatior
Unitholders’ equity Equity
Fund unit 282,798,32 — — 282,798,32 Fund unit
Contributed surplt 7,625,42. — — 7,625,42.  Contributed surplt
Deficit (210,339,468)  (9,171,846) —  (219,511,314) Deficit
Accumulated other
— (83,679 — (83,679 comprehensive lo
80,084,278 (9,255,525) — 70,828,753 Total equity
182,899,15 (12,514,26¢€ 6,604,891 176,989,77 Total liabilities and equity
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Reconciliation of Consolidated Statement of Earning for the year ended December 31, 2010

Canadian Canadian IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS
GAAP accounts GAAP balance adjustments reclassifications Balance account:
Revenue 153,124,398 — — 153,124,398 Revenue

Cost of goods sold, selling,
general and administrative

expense 120,128,91 (192,526 (17,000,754 102,935,63 Operating expens
Selling, general and
— — 17,000,75  17,000,75 administrative expens
Operating earnings before
amortization, loss on
disposal of property, plant
and equipment, acquisition
Earnings before the costs and restructuring
following:: 32,995,484 192,526 — 33,188,010 expenses
Amortization and write-down Amortization and write-down
of property, plant and of property, plant and
equipment 6,661,624 — — 6,661,624 equipment
Amortization of intangible Amortization of intangible
assets 6,163,900 — — 6,163,900 assets
Amortization of deferred Amortization of deferred
compensatic 1,260,51. (945,433 — 315,07¢ compensatio
Loss on disposal of property, Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 340,169 — — 340,169 plant and equipment
Net financing charges 4,720,981 — (4,720,981) —
— 152,07( — 152,07( Acquisition cost
Restructuring expenses 1,845,676 208,843 — 2,094, FRestructuring expenses
— 777,04¢ 4,720,98  17,500,64 Operating earnings
— — 4,720,981 4,720,981 Financing charges
Earnings before income
Earnings before income ta 12,002,62 777,04t — 12,779,66 taxes
Provision for incomes taxes 3,008,750 (46,900) — 2,961,850 Income taxes expense
Net earnings 8,993,872 823,946 — 9,817,818 Net earnings
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Reconciliation of Consolidated Statement of Compredmsive Income for the year ended

December 31, 2010

Canadian
Canadian GAAP
GAAP accounts balance

IFRS
adjustments

IFRS
reclassifications

IFRS IFRS
Balance accounts

Net earnings
Other comprehensive
income (loss):

8,993,87.

823,94¢

(1,427,415)

(21,118

(14,528

9,817,811 Net earnings
Other comprehensive
income (loss):
Recognized actuarial loss
on defined benefit plan,
net of an income tax
(1,427,415) recovery of $492,185
Recognized actuarial loss
on other
post-retirement benefit,
net of an income tax
(21,118 recovery of $7,28
Foreign currency
translation adjustments
(14,528 to earning

Other comprehensive
income

(1,463,061)

Other comprehensive
(1,463,061) income

Comprehensive income

8,993,872

(639,115)

Total comprehensive
8,354,757 income

26. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures from the previous yeaexe reclassified to conform to the
presentation adopted for the current year.
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